# Harvest Moon: More Friends of Mineral Town Relationship Guide

by Arashinonatsu

Updated to v2.0 on Dec 3, 2009

```
THE ULTIMATE HARVEST MOON
     FoMT / MoFo
LOVE & FRIENDSHIP GUIDE
Version 2.0
Written by: Arashinonatsu
E-mail: my username at gmail-dot-com
Homepage: http://calypsotea.deviantart.com/
Date: December 02, 2009
===============
  "LOVE AUTOPSY"
(TABLE OF CONTENTS)
I. "You Had Me From Hello" -- Introduction
II. "The Sweetest Days" -- Calendar Of Events
    II.01. Spring
    II.02. Summer
    II.03. Autumn (Fall)
    II.04. Winter
III. "Looking For Love" -- How To Make Friends And Babies
    III.01. Gift Points
    III.02. Heart Levels
    III.03. The Legend Of The Blue Feather
    III.04. Marriage And Beyond
    III.05. The Other Couples
    III.06. More About Your Baby -- Coming Eventually!
IV. "You Could Be The One" -- The Main Bachelorettes/Bachelors
    IV.01. Ann
    IV.02. Cliff
    IV.03. Doctor
    IV.04. Elli
    IV.05. Gray
    IV.06. Kai
    IV.07. Karen
    IV.08. Mary
    IV.09. Popuri
    IV.10. Rick
V. "Secret Lovers" -- Special Bachelorettes/Bachelors
    V.01. The Gourmet
    V.02. The Harvest Goddess
    V.03. Kappa
    V.04. Won
VI. "With A little Help From My Friends" -- The Townspeople
    VI.01. Anna
    VI.02. Barley
    VI.03. Basil
```

```
VI.04. Carter
    VI.05. Doug
    VI.06. Duke
    VI.07. Ellen
    VI.08. Gotz
    VI.09. Harris
    VI.10. Jeff
    VI.11. Lillia
    VI.12. Manna
    VI.13. May
    VI.14. Saibara
    VI.15. Sasha
    VI.16. Stu
    VI.17. Thomas
    VI.18. Zack
VII. "Don't Touch That Dial" -- And Now, A Word From Our Sponsor...
VIII. "Do You Believe In Magic?" -- Coming Eventually!
    VIII.01. Aqua
    VIII.02. Bold
    VIII.03. Chef
    VIII.04. Hoggy
    VIII.05. Nappy
    VIII.06. Staid
    VIII.07. Timid
IX. "My Funny Friend & Me" -- Coming Eventually!
    IX.01. Your Dog
    IX.02. Your Horse
    IX.03. Your Chickens
    IX.04. Your Cows
    IX.05. Your Sheep
    IX.06. Other Animals
  "Celebration" -- Coming Eventually!
    X.01. Festivals
    X.02. Events
    X.03. Game Extras
XI. "The Little Things" -- Final Info That's Not Interesting...
    XI.01. E-mail Policy
    XI.02. Version History
    XI.03. Special Thanks To...
    XI.04. Copyright Info & Disclaimer
XII. "I Got Stung" -- Stinger
```

# I. "YOU HAD ME FROM HELLO" (INTRODUCTION)

\_\_\_\_\_

Hello! I'm Arashinonatsu and this is my second guide for Harvest Moon. I've compiled as much information as I could to endeavor to make the best in-depth relationship guide for Harvest Moon: Friends of Mineral Town (FoMT) and Harvest Moon: More Friends of Mineral Town, the alternate "for girls" version of FoMT. More Friends is commonly referred to as MFoMT, an acronym I despise and find quite awkward. Therefore, I will \*always\* use the acronym MoFo ('Mo're 'F'riends 'o'f) and shamelessly encourage you to use it as well.

\*NOTE! This guide has information pertaining \*only\* to these two (2) versions of Harvest Moon for the Game Boy Advance. I cannot help with any other game.

This guide includes information on how to befriend and/or woo not just the ten main and four special marriageable characters, but also how to befriend the local townspeople. Eventually, I hope to include the Harvest Sprites and your farm animals as well. Though the guide is clearly unfinished, it still contains a lot of information for both the new and advanced player.

Later in the guide, you will notice that every character has an astrological sign. This is NOT an official stat. It is only my personal humble opinion.

Because this guide is so large, if you need something specific, you should make use of the Ctrl+F "Find" feature in most browsers and text editing programs. Pressing 'Ctrl+F' should bring up the search bar to type in the section or character you are looking for. ^ ^

# II. "THE SWEETEST DAYS" (CALENDAR OF EVENTS)

Years in harvest Moon are comprised of four seasons: Spring, Summer, Autumn (Fall), and Winter. Each season consists of 30 days. It's important to keep track of dates; many crops, events, and even characters are season-specific. There is an uneditable calendar where festival days are circled located on the wall of your home. Birthdays and anniversaries you will have to keep track of on your own.

All the characters in the game have a birthday, but each of the marriage candidates have an alternate birthday. If you choose your birthday at the start of the game and the date you chose falls on a bachelorette/bachelor's regular birthday, their birthday will instead be on the alternate day. For example, if you choose Summer 03 for your character's birthday, the game will automatically change Popuri's birthday to her alternate day of Summer 10.

Often the day before a festival, or certain events, someone will come to your house first thing in the morning to remind you. Be careful. If you oversleep, teleport out, sleep until the next day, or hang out in the bathroom for too long, you may miss an important house call.

II.01. Spring

```
Spring 01: The New Year's Festival, 6pm - Midnight
```

Spring 02:

Spring 03:

Spring 04: Bold's Birthday

Spring 05:

Spring 06:

Spring 07:

Spring 08: The Harvest Goddess' Birthday

Kappa's Birthday

Spring 09: \*The Harvest Goddess' Alternate Birthday\*

\*Kappa's Alternate Birthday\*

Spring 10:

Spring 11: Saibara's Birthday

Spring 12:

```
Spring 13:
Spring 14: Spring Thanksgiving Festival (Boys Give Cookies)
Spring 15: Staid's Birthday
Spring 16: Elli's Birthday
Spring 17: Barley's Birthday
Spring 18: The Spring Horse Races, 10am - 6pm
Spring 19: Lillia's Birthday
Spring 20: *Elli's Alternate Birthday*
           *The Gourmet's Alternate Birthday*
Spring 21: The Gourmet's Birthday
Spring 22: The Cooking Festival, 10am - 6pm
Spring 23:
Spring 24:
Spring 25:
Spring 26: Aqua's Birthday
Spring 27:
Spring 28:
Spring 29:
Spring 30: Sasha's Birthday
     _____
     II.02. Summer
     _____
Summer 01: Beach Day, 10am - 6pm
Summer 02:
Summer 03: Popuri's Birthday
Summer 04: Harris' Birthday
Summer 05:
Summer 06: Cliff's Birthday
Summer 07: The Chicken Festival, 10am - 6pm
Summer 08:
Summer 09:
Summer 10: *Popuri's Alternate Birthday*
          *Cliff's Alternate Birthday*
Summer 11: Basil's Birthday
Summer 12:
Summer 13:
Summer 14:
Summer 15:
Summer 16: Timid's Birthday
Summer 17: Ann's Birthday
          *Kai's Alternate Birthday*
Summer 18:
Summer 19:
Summer 20: The Cow Festival, 10am - 6pm
Summer 21:
Summer 22: Kai's Birthday
           *Ann's Alternate Birthday*
Summer 23:
Summer 24: The Fireworks Festival, 6pm - 9pm
Summer 25: Thomas' Birthday
Summer 26:
Summer 27:
Summer 28:
Summer 29: Zack's Birthday
Summer 30:
```

II.03. Autumn (Fall)

```
Autumn 01:
Autumn 02: Gotz's Birthday
Autumn 03: Music Festival, 6pm - Midnight
Autumn 04:
Autumn 05: Stu's Birthday
Autumn 06:
Autumn 07:
Autumn 08:
Autumn 09: The Harvest Festival, 10am - 6pm
Autumn 10: Hoggy's Birthday
Autumn 11: Manna's Birthday
Autumn 12:
Autumn 13: The Full Moon Festival, 6pm - Midnight
Autumn 14: Chef's Birthday
Autumn 15: Karen's Birthday
Autumn 16:
Autumn 17:
Autumn 18: The Autumn Horse Races, 10am - 6pm
Autumn 19: Doctor's Birthday
Autumn 20: Carter's Birthday
Autumn 21: The Sheep Festival, 10am - 6pm
Autumn 22:
Autumn 23: Anna's Birthday
          *Karen's Alternate Birthday*
           *Rick's Alternate Birthday*
Autumn 24:
Autumn 25: *Doctor's Alternate Birthday*
Autumn 26:
Autumn 27: Rick's Birthday
Autumn 28:
Autumn 29:
Autumn 30: Pumpkin Festival (Give Chocolate To Children), 6am - 11am
     _____
     II.04. Winter
     _____
Winter 01:
Winter 02: Thomas' Request, 6am - 0am and 7pm - 0pm
Winter 03:
Winter 04:
Winter 05:
Winter 06: Gray's Birthday
Winter 07:
Winter 08:
Winter 09:
Winter 10:
Winter 11: Doug's Birthday
Winter 12:
Winter 13: Ellen's Birthday
Winter 14: Winter Thanksgiving Festival (Girls Give Chocolate)
Winter 15: Duke's Birthday
Winter 16:
Winter 17:
Winter 18:
Winter 19: Won's Birthday
Winter 20: Mary's Birthday
Winter 21: *Won's Alternate Birthday*
```

```
Winter 22: Nappy's Birthday
Winter 23: (Invitation to Starry Night Festival)

*Gray's Alternate Birthday*

Winter 24: The Starry Night Festival (with friend), 6pm - 9pm

The Starry Night Festival (with spouse), Noon - Midnight

Winter 25: The Stocking Festival (Go to bed between 9pm - Midnight)

*Mary's Alternate Birthday*

Winter 26: May's Birthday

Winter 27:

Winter 28:

Winter 29: Jeff's Birthday

Winter 30: The New Year's Eve Festival (Noodles), 6pm - Midnight

The New Year's Eve Festival (Sunrise), Midnight - 6am
```

\_\_\_\_\_

# III. "LOOKING FOR LOVE" (HOW TO MAKE FRIENDS AND BABIES)

The first thing to do is to familiarize yourself with where everything is and when they open. There are two ways to bring up a view of the Town Map. One is to press 'Start', which brings up the menu at the bottom of the screen, then move the cursor to the map icon and press 'A'. The other method is to press the 'Left Shoulder Button' and 'Start' at the same time. That will bring up the map automatically. The map will have locations for and briefly explain each major area, and show the hours of many businesses.

There are many benefits to making friends in Mineral Town. You don't have to be friends with everyone, you don't even have to be friends with \*anyone\*, but you'll lose out on the major theme and charm of the game if you play the loner. Every character in the game has a friendship meter that rises or falls based on your actions. They start off very neutral towards you, but that can easily change. You can raise or lower friendship points in a number of different ways. Friendship levels will increase if you:

- -- Attend a festival (only increases for the people who are also attending).
- -- Confess to Carter that no one likes you and you are forgiven.
- -- Give someone a gift that they like.

Friendship levels will decrease if you:

- -- Display Golden Lumber.
- -- Give someone a gift that they don't like.
- -- Litter!

I'm going to explain littering because it decreases friendship points by a noticeable amount, and many players don't realize that it affects friendship points at all. When you throw an item onto the ground and the item disappears, the game considers this to be littering. Throwing things into the water is also considered littering. The penalty gets even steeper during festivals. You should know that there is a garbage can in Rose Square where you can safely toss your garbage.

However, if you really want to throw something away, and you can't get to Rose Square, just go into your rucksack. Move the pointer to the item that you want to throw away and press 'Start'. It will ask you if you want to throw the item away. No penalties! This works for your rucksack, the refrigerator, the shelf, and the Tool box! Also, a neat trick to know is that pressing the 'A'

and 'B' buttons at the same time will allow you to automatically access your rucksack at any time. This will come in handy when you can't access the start menu during events and festivals.

There are a number of aspects in the game that change when you become friends with people. Characters will change their dialogue. Some may even give you a recipe to add to your cookbook, or other valuable gifts and opportunities. You may receive letters and cards in the mail, and special character events can be unlocked. Some people will allow you to visit them earlier, stay later, or even enter a locked room. Friendship can also lead to marriage.

-----

# III.01. Gift Points

You can give a gift to any character in the game. However, you can't just give \*anything\* to \*anyone\*. Each of the characters have different personalities, and therefore, different tastes. They don't all like the same things. Just because Basil loves Red Grass, doesn't mean his wife Anna does too. Giving someone an item that they like will raise their friendship points for you. Giving them something that they dislike will do the opposite.

The townspeople will start out with an affection for you at a neutral setting of about 49 or 50 friendship points (maximum 255). Marriage candidates will start with their affection for you at 0 points (maximum 65,535). While the gift point table is listed below for both, some people may find it easier to imagine that the Bachelorette/Bachelor points apply to the townspeople as well. Please feel free to do so. It may not be as accurate, but it does work very nicely.

Bachelorettes/Bachelors		Townspeople
Special Favorite Items:	+800 Points	n/a
Loved Items:	+500 Points	+9
Liked Items:	+300 Points	+3
Neutral Items:	+100 Points	+1
Disliked Items:	-500 Points	-3
Hated Items:	-800 Points	<b>-</b> 9

You can give someone a gift as is, or you can have it gift-wrapped at the Supermarket for 100G. If the item is something that the recipient will love, the gift-wrapping will boost the amount of friendship points received by 125%. If the item is something that they hate, their points will plummet down by the same amount. The same holds true for a person's birthday. Giving a character a gift that they love on their birthday will give the item's points a boost by at least 500% (625% gift-wrapped)!

You can give gifts to the same person multiple times per day. The first time will yield the full amount of points, but every gift after that will be less effective than the first (becoming only 1/3 of the normal point value). I wouldn't recommend giving the same person more than five gifts per day, nine at the most.

Sometimes you may actually \*want\* to lower someone's friendship level for you. This can be especially true in regards to triggering Heart Events and Rival Heart events explained in the next section. In that case, you will want to give that individual character a hated gift for a while. This is the best way, as it won't affect any other characters' levels.

Remember that raising or lowering someone's friendship levels may take no time at all, or they may take several weeks of repeated gift-giving. Just keep your eyes on the goal and remain vigilant.

-----

III.02. Heart Levels

Marriage candidates have a visibly beating heart on their chest when you talk to them. The heart will grow bigger and change colors as they care for you more. There are seven Heart Levels, which you can think of like a backwards rainbow. Here they are, from lowest to highest.

Black >> Purple >> Blue >> Green >> Yellow >> Orange >> Red

The point system for the Heart Levels works basically like this:

Black Heart = 0 - 9,999 Points
Purple Heart = 10,000 - 19,999 Points
Blue Heart = 20,000 - 29,999 Points
Green Heart = 30,000 - 39,999 Points
Yellow Heart = 40,000 - 49,999 Points
Orange Heart = 50,000 - 59,999 Points
Red Heart = 60,000 - 65,535 Points

Obviously you can't see where the exact points are at, but you'll at least be able to do a "guess-timate".

Now, some characters have invisible heart levels. These secret marriage candidates are the Gourmet, Harvest Goddess, Kappa, and Won. Because they already have extra requirements and situations making them difficult to marry, these characters do not have a rival love.

As the marriage candidates move up in Heart Levels, there are certain "boost" events that you can trigger to make their love points raise considerably. These are called Heart Events and they are triggered at four specific levels. These levels are:

Black >> Purple >> Blue >> Yellow

Heart Events are basically a cinema cut-scene that you trigger by entering a certain area at a certain time. They involve a choice on your part. The wrong answer will cause your friend's love points to drop by a lot. The right answer will cause the love points to raise.

If you raise someone's Heart Level too fast, it's possible that you can wind up skipping a Heart Event. If the Heart Level becomes too high, it will prevent you from viewing a lower event. For example, in FoMT, if you get Elli to Purple Heart before seeing her Black Heart event, you will not be able to trigger the Black Heart event at all (or any subsequent events). You will have to work to lower her Heart Level back down. You canNOT get married to a character without seeing each of that character's four Heart Events.

Take your time! These particular HM games don't actually end, so there is no real rush to get married immediately. However, it's important to know that you have rivals in love. Each potential spouse (except the secret bachelorette/bachelors) has another person vying for their attention. The rival couples are:

Elli == Doctor
Karen == Rick
Mary == Gray
Popuri == Kai

Each of your rivals have four heart events too. You trigger them by entering a certain area at a certain time. These cinemas don't involve any other interaction on your part. Make sure that you keep track of which events you've triggered. There is no visible way to tell which heart level your rival's love is at. These events are also triggered at four specific levels, but they are slightly different than the ones for your Heart Events. These levels are:

Black >> Blue >> Green >> Orange

\*NOTE! The Green Rival Event can ONLY be triggered in the second year or later. The Orange Rival Event can ONLY be triggered in the fourth year or later.

The fate of your rivals' relationships rests in your hands. They will not marry unless you trigger their Rival Heart events. You will not be able to trigger a rival's heart event if the subject likes you better than your rival. For example, in FoMT, let's say you wanted to see Karen and Rick's Green Heart event. You won't be able to trigger it if she has a Yellow (or higher) heart for you. You would have to lower her heart back down to Green or below.

Thankfully, this stipulation does not go both ways. You can safely view the Rival Heart events before triggering your own, even if the object of your affections has a Black Heart for you. You can also raise the hearts of each bachelorette/bachelor without affecting the other bachelorettes/bachelors. The only thing is that you must NOT trigger your rival's Orange Heart event. Once you trigger a rival's Orange Heart event, the two will marry in seven days. If the wedding will fall on a holiday, it will instead occur on the next regular day following that holiday. Only trigger that event if you want them to get married.

III.03. The Legend Of The Blue Feather

\*NOTE! This story is NOT official, nor is it mine. It is a wonderful, original tale woven by Freyashawk (see Section XI.02) to explain the tradition. She has graciously allowed me to use this story in my guide. But I must reiterate that, no matter how much I wish it was, this story is neither mine nor canon.

"In the first days of mankind, when people were learning about life in all its complexities and splendour, there was a very shy boy named Kuko. He was very much in love with the daughter of the chief of his tribe, but was too shy to say anything to her. Instead, he would leave a white flower at her door each morning and then walk past her house later to see if his gift had been accepted.

The White Flower was a rare and beautiful blossom that could be found only at the top of the highest mountain. Each evening, Kuko would climb the mountain to search for the elusive flower and he would not return to his village without it. To him, it represented the rare emotion that had blossomed in his own heart. Every day, his heart rose when he saw that the flower no longer lay on the doorstep. He imagined his beloved would understand that her own beauty was

reflected in the exquisite loveliness of the White Flower.

Then one day, a delegation of strangers came to the village. They brought an offering of marriage from the son of a neighbouring chieftain. Donkeys laden with gold, chests filled with precious gems and baskets filled with grains, vegetables and fruit accompanied the proposal of marriage.

Poor Kuko! His heart sank when he saw the ostentatious procession and heard the admiring exclamations of the villagers. All he had to offer was the simple White Flower. In fact, as the delegation entered the home of the village chieftain, their heavy boots trampled Kuko's offering into the dust. Kuko could not imagine that the girl would prefer him to the son of a wealthy chief. He was a poor shepherd boy who owned only a couple of sheep and two chickens who never had laid a single golden egg.

In despair that evening, he went to the Spring of the Goddess to think. It was a favourite spot of his, a place he often visited when life appeared darkest. According to legend, the Harvest Goddess lived in the lake and granted the wishes of deserving individuals who sought her aid. Kuko imagined the Goddess to be as compassionate as she would be beautiful, and he poured his heart out to her in the twilight, speaking of his dreams and hopes, his disappointments and his struggles. Ordinarily rather inarticulate and shy, Kuko found he was able to speak freely to the Goddess he could not see but whom he sensed to be ever-present in the sparkling waters of the Spring.

That evening, when he finally fell silent, he was surprised by the appearance of an exquisite blue bird flying across the sky. The bird circled overhead three times, then dropped a feather into his lap. The feather was long and iridescent, and Kuko never had beheld anything quite as beautiful. Kuko was startled, but even more astonished when the bird actually spoke to him.

'I am the Namimoto bird, who makes her nest in the very lap of the Goddess,' the bird sang. 'She bids me tell you to take heart. Give this Blue Feather to the girl you love and if her heart beats true for you, she will be yours.'

Kuko bowed low to the sacred bird, thanking her for the rare gift. He then returned to the village, feather in hand, and laid it upon the doorstep of his beloved. He could not sleep, however, and was at her door at dawn to see if the feather remained where he had left it.

Much to his joy, the feather was gone!

As he stood there, the chief of the village, his daughter and the entire delegation of strangers came out of the house, and the village crier began to ring the bell, calling the villager to a meeting. All the villagers congregated in the Square, pressing forward to hear the news. Poor Kuko was afraid suddenly that it would be an announcement that the Chief's daughter had agreed to accept the offer of marriage from the neighbouring Chief's son.

Instead, he beheld his lady love stepping forward with the Blue Feather braided into her golden hair. In a clear voice, she declared:

'I will marry only the man who can tell me where the bird to which this feather belongs lives.'

Her father then spoke: 'Three days from now, we will have another meeting and at that time, we will hear the answer to my daughter's question.'

Kuko realized that the Chief intended to give the neighbouring Chief's son

a chance to discover the answer to the girl's question. The next three days passed far too slowly, therefore, for poor Kuko, who knew the answer himself, but did not know if his rival would be able to stand forth to give the correct answer as well.

After three days had passed, the bells rang. out again and the villagers collected in the Square. The delegation returned and this time, the neighbouring Chief's son was with them. Much to Kuko's consternation, he was a handsome lad, but with arrogance stamped in his features. His bearing moreover denoted one accustomed to having his own way in everything. Kuko's rival stepped forward then, as if he and he alone had the right to speak first.

He declared loudly, 'Here is my answer to your question: I have sent men to every corner of our land, and no one has seen a bird with feathers like this. I therefore declare with confidence that the bird is foreign to these parts, and must be from a land very faraway.'

'Yes!' agreed the Chief happily, 'That must be so. We have our answer here.'

'And yet,' said the girl, 'That is no answer at all. It does not tell me where to find the bird.'

Kuko stepped forward then. Much to his surprise, when he spoke, he did not stutter as usual. His voice was firm and melodious as he said, 'I have seen the bird you seek. This bird will not be found anywhere in our land or in any other, for she makes her nest in the very lap of the Goddess. She is the Namimoto bird, favoured by the Harvest Goddess above all others.'

The villagers were amazed, not only by Kuko's words but by his transformation into a confident young man who had neither hesitation nor fear.

'How do you know this?' the Chief demanded with a frown.

'The bird gave me the Blue Feather,' said Kuko. 'It is a symbol of true love, for the man who offers this feather to a girl declares: 'My heart flies to you, even as a bird flies to its nest. I wish to dwell in your heart forever.' That is the message of the Blue Feather and that is why I offer it to your daughter. I am your humble servant, sir, but my heart has the highest of aspirations, to belong to your daughter forever.

Every one was captivated by the boy's words and even the Chief could not maintain his stern disapproval, although the thought of losing all the advantages that an alliance with the neighbouring Chief would have provided was disappointing. Even so, he loved his daughter and her happiness was more important than riches. The Chief's daughter looked at the son of the neighbouring Chief, then at Kuko.

'I always loved you,' she told the young shepherd. 'Each morning, I would watch from my window as you brought a beautiful White Flower to my door. I always hoped you would speak to me one day of your love.'

She took his hand then in her own and announced, 'I accept your Blue Feather and your heart. From this day forward, let the Blue Feather be a sign of eternal love for every man and woman who wishes to marry.'

And so it came to pass that the 'Blue Feather' became the symbol of love and accompanied every proposal of marriage through all the centuries."

-----

# III.04. Marriage And Beyond

When you've gotten a bachelorette/bachelor to Orange Heart level, the Blue Feather will be available for sale (1,000 G) at the Supermarket. Traditionally in Mineral Town, the Blue Feather is given to your love as a marriage proposal. If s/he accepts, you will marry seven days from that date. If the wedding will fall on a holiday, it will instead occur on the next regular day following that holiday.

The Blue Feather is considered a 'tool' rather than an 'item', and will be stored in the 'Tools' section of your rucksack or in your Tool box. But just because you have the Blue Feather doesn't mean your proposal will be accepted. Your love can, and will, turn you down if you haven't met all the marriage requirements. In order to marry, you must first:

- -- Have your love at Red Heart level.
- -- Propose using the Blue Feather.
- -- View each of your love's four heart events in order.
- -- Own all items sold from the TV Shopping Network.
- -- Have the largest (final) house upgrade.
- -- Being friends with your love's relatives is NOT a requirement, but it will boost your chances of being accepted on the first try.

\*NOTE! After you get married, the game credits roll and become one of your archived letters. This is NOT the end of the game! It's annoying to sit through, but when the credits are finished, the game will continue normally.

After the wedding, your spouse will move into your home and ask if they can call you by a nickname. This includes Kai, who will move to Mineral Town and be available during all seasons. The Gourmet, Harvest Goddess, and Kappa are exceptions. They will not move in with you. You will also be given the option to allow your love to continue working or become a stay-at-home spouse. Having a housewife/husband is completely a matter of personal choice. They don't actually do anything or help on the farm if they stay home. They will constantly just pace alongside the dinner table. This option is also not available for certain characters. Elli, Mary, and Won will not quit their jobs after marriage.

Once you're married, the heart on the chests of the other bachelorettes/bachelors will disappear and only your spouse's heart will remain. Keep in mind that even though their hearts are invisible, they still have the same amount of affection for you. If you plan to marry them off, you will need to lower their heart levels back down if they are too high to trigger the rival events.

Your spouse will also appear in your inventory alongside your dog and your horse. Keeping your spouse's level consistently at Red Heart will keep them happy and their love for you will grow. You will be able to see this on your inventory screen. Your spouse has a maximum of ten hearts. There is no divorce in this game, so you can't change spouses ever. If your spouse becomes unhappy with you, and their heart level falls too low, s/he will just move out. Talk to your love and give them a nice gift everyday to prevent this. If you can maintain them at ten hearts, you will soon find yourself expecting a baby.

Pregnancy lasts about two seasons. If you are playing FoMT, your wife will have a baby boy. If you are playing MoFo, you will give birth to a baby girl. Your new baby will also appear in your inventory, which means that the baby, as well, has a heart level. You can't pick up your baby, only give

her/him gifts and talk to her/him. Your baby will also only grow to toddler stage. S/he will never grow any older and canNOT help on the farm. You will only have one child.

Your spouse will usually bake a cake on a special occasion. Better make sure you know if this occasion is her/his birthday, your birthday, or your anniversary. S/he will get angry if you give the wrong answer. And if you stay married for 50 years, your spouse will buy you a Mountain Cottage for your anniversary! ^ ^

III.05. The Other Couples

-----

As stated previously, once you trigger a rival's Orange Heart event, the two will marry in seven days. If the wedding will fall on a holiday, it will instead occur on the next regular day following that holiday. If you're good friends with your rival, you will be invited to the wedding. First thing in the morning, on the day of the wedding, your rival will be waiting outside your door to invite you. You automatically accept, view a cinema of the wedding, and wake up the next morning.

If you aren't invited to the wedding, you can still view it by going in the church on the wedding day anytime between 6AM and 10PM. Carter will ask you if you want to join in the festivities. If you accept, you will view a cinema of the wedding and wake up the next morning. If you decline, you will be able to talk to everyone in the church. Your rival will even give you a poor excuse for not inviting you.

After their wedding, the other couple may move in with each other, or change their schedules slightly. Also, the couple will never have a child. If Popuri and Kai get married, Popuri will leave with Kai and only be available during the Summer.

III.06. More About Your Baby

-----

Coming Eventually!

\_\_\_\_\_

IV. "YOU COULD BE THE ONE"

(THE MAIN BACHELORETTES/BACHELORS)

This section lists the ten main marriage candidates in Harvest Moon. In FoMT, you can marry Ann, Elli, Karen, Mary, or Popuri. In MoFo, you can marry Cliff, the Doctor, Gray, Kai, or Rick. You canNOT get married to a character of the same gender. However, in MoFo, you can trigger each girl's Black Heart event, which is considered a bonus "friendship" event.

\*NOTE! I only have the points values for the girls' heart events (thanks to Samurai Goroh and The King Of This Game), so if anyone has the values for the boys' events, please e-mail me! ^ ^

-----

-----

Description: Ann is a cheerful young girl with red hair pulled back into a braided ponytail. A self-proclaimed tomboy, she lives and works at the local Inn with her father, Doug. She has a forceful personality, but is also very friendly and energetic.

Birthday: Summer 17 (Alt: Summer 22)

Sign: Leo

Family: Doug (father)

Get Some Extra Lovin': Buy anything from the Inn

Friend Recipe: None

Rival: Cliff

# Special Favorite Items:

Cake, Cheese Fondue, Pancakes, Truffle Rice

#### Loves:

Apple Pie, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bamboo Rice, Buckwheat Noodles, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Curry Bread, Curry Rice, Diamonds, Fried Noodles (Regular), Fried Rice, Ice Cream, Mushroom Rice, Omelet Rice, Omelets, Pink Diamonds, Pudding, Pumpkin Pudding, Rice Cakes, Roasted Rice Cakes, Salad, Sandwiches, Savory Pancakes, Spa-Boiled Eggs, Stew, Stir Fry, Strawberry Milk, Sushi, Tempura Buckwheat Noodles, Tempura Noodles

#### Likes:

Amethysts, Apple Soufflé, Apples, Boiled Egg, Bread, Buckwheat Chips, Buckwheat Flour, Candied Potatoes, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Corn Flakes, Curry Noodles, Dinner Roll, Earrings, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Eggs Over Rice, Emeralds, Fish (L), French Fries, French Toast, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Fruit Juice, Grape Juice, Greens, Happy Eggplant, Jam Bun, Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Message Bottle, Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Miso Soup, Mixed Juice, Mixed Latte, Mountain Stew, Muffin Mix, Noodles, Picked Turnips, Pickles, Pineapples, Pineapple Juice, Pizza, Popcorn, Raisin Bread, Recipe for French Fries, Relaxation Tea, Rice balls, Rice Gruel, Rubies, Sashimi, Scrambled Eggs, Strawberries, Strawberry Jam, Sweet Potatoes, Tempura, Tempura Rice, Toast, Toasted Rice Balls, Tomatoes, Tomato Juice, Topaz, Vegetable Juice, Vegetable Latte

# Neutral:

Apple Jam, Autumn Sun, Baked Corn, Bamboo, Blue Magic Flowers, Butter, Cabbage, Carrots, Corn, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Eggplant, Elli Leaves, Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, Fruit Latte, Grape Jam, Green Peppers, Grilled Fish, Honey, Hot Milk, Ketchup, Moon Drop Flowers, Moon Dumplings, Mushrooms, Oil, Onions, Peridot, Pink Cat Flowers, Potatoes, Potato Pancakes, Pumpkins, Pumpkin Stew, Red Magic Flowers, Spinach, Spring Sun, Summer Sun, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Toy Flowers, Truffles, Turnips, Wild Grape Juice, Wild Grapes, Wine, Winter Sun, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S)

# Dislikes:

Black Grass, Blue Grass, Bodigizer, Bodigizer XL, Failures, Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Orange Grass, Purple Grass, Turbojolt, Turbojolt XL, White Grass

# Hates:

Adamantite, Agate, Alexandrite, Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Branches, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Golden Lumber, Junk Ore, Lumber, Moon Stones, Mythic Stones, Mystrile Ore, Old Boots, Orichalc, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Red Grass, Sand Rose, Silver Ore, Stones, Weeds, Yellow Grass

# Schedule:

Days: Everyday Weather: Sunny

```
06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in the Inn
          07:00am - 07:30am = Walking to the Hot Springs
          07:30am - 10:00am = The Hot Springs
          10:00am - 10:30am = Walking to the Inn
          10:30am - 01:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Inn
          01:00pm - 04:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn
          04:00pm - 07:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Inn
          07:00pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of Inn
          10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Inn
     Days: Everyday
    Weather: Rainy, Snowing
         06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in the Inn
          07:00am - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn
          10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Inn
Heart Events:
    Which: BLACK
    Where: 1st Floor of the Inn
    When: Any day (except Monday, Saturday) / Any season / 10:30am - 1pm
    What: Doug and Ann will offer you a free lunch as a welcome to Mineral
           Town.
             "Sounds great!"
                                       <<+3,000 Points>>
             "I really couldn't..." <<-2,000 Points>>
    Which: PURPLE
    Where: 2nd Floor of the Inn
    When: Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday, Sunday / Any season / 10:30am - 1pm
    What: You run into Ann hard at work and she tells you about how much she
           likes to clean.
              "I like cleaning."
                                    <<+3,000 Points>>
              "I hate cleaning."
                                    <<-2,000 Points>>
    Which: BLUE
    Where: 1st Floor of the Inn
    When: Mondays, Fridays / Any season / Noon - 7pm
    What: While talking to her father, Ann suddenly becomes very sick.
              "Take her to the clinic." <<+3,000 Points>>
                                          <<
              "I... I don't know...!"
                                                 -0 Points>>
     *NOTE! You must have the largest version of the rucksack and have an empty
           item slot available in order to trigger this event.
    Which: YELLOW
    Where: 1st Floor of the Inn
    When: Any day (except Monday, Friday) / Any season / 10:30am - 7pm
    What: Doug wants to know exactly how much you like Ann.
              "I like her."
                                     <<+3,000 Points>>
              "Only as a friend." << -0 Points>>
Rival Events:
    Which: BLACK
    Where: 2nd Floor of the Inn
    When: Any day / Spring, Summer (only the first week), Autumn, Winter /
           7pm - 9pm
    What: Ann tries to make small talk with Cliff and asks him why he came to
           Mineral Town.
     *NOTE! This event and the next one MUST be triggered before Cliff gets the
          Winery job in the first year if you want him to eventually marry
          Ann.
```

Which: BLUE

Where: The Church

When: Any day (except Saturday) / Raining / Spring, Summer / 11am - 4pm

What: Carter asks Ann to help Cliff make friends by introducing him

around town.

\*NOTE! This event MUST be triggered before Cliff gets the Winery job in

the first year in order to trigger the next two events.

Which: GREEN

Where: 1st Floor of the Inn

When: Saturdays / Any season / 10am - 1pm / Year 2 and later

 $\hbox{What:}\quad \hbox{Ann and Doug tell Cliff that they hope he stays in Mineral Town}$ 

forever.

\*NOTE! This event can only trigger if Cliff gets the Winery job and has remained in Mineral Town, and the previous 2 events have been

witnessed.

Which: ORANGE

Where: Cellar of the Winery

When: Any day (except Saturday) / Any season / 10am - 1pm /

Year 4 and later

What: Duke comments on Ann and Cliff as a couple and then tries to

facilitate an engagement.

\*NOTE! This event can only trigger if Cliff gets the Winery job and has remained in Mineral Town, and the previous 3 events have been

witnessed. Ann and Cliff will get married 7 days after this event.

### Other Events:

Ann & Cliff's Argument, Ann's Mother's Memorial 1, Cliff Faints, Cooking For The Girls, Customers For Kai, Doug's Birthday, Duke Vs. Doug, Karen Vs. Duke, Slumber Party

# Festivals:

New Year's Festival, Spring Horse Races, Cooking Festival, Fireworks Festival, Music Festival, Harvest Festival, Year End Noodles

-----

IV.02. Cliff

Description: Cliff is a poor wanderer who winds up in Mineral Town. His long reddish-brown hair is normally pulled back into a loose ponytail. Very soft-spoken and shy, he has no money and is usually with Carter at the Church. His situation is actually very dire and due to lack of funds, he will leave town forever at the end of the first year. He will NEVER come back. If you choose, you can prevent this by inviting him to help you at the Winery job on Autumn 14. Duke and Manna will then offer him a permanent position which will allow him to stay in town indefinitely.

Birthday: Summer 6 (Alt: Summer 10)

Sign: Cancer

Family: None in Mineral Town Get Some Extra Lovin': N/A

Friend Recipe: None

Rival: Ann

# Special Favorite Items:

# Loves:

Chirashi Sushi, Curry Rice, Grilled Fish, Miso Soup, Omelet Rice, Omelets, Pizza, Sandwiches, Scrambled Eggs, Stew, Sushi

#### Likes:

Apple Pie, Apples, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bread, Cake, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Corn, Cucumbers, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Fried Noodles (Regular), Grapes, HMSGB Apples, Hot Milk, Ice Cream, Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Pineapples, Pineapple Juice, Pudding, Relaxation Tea, Salad, Sashimi, SUGDW Apples, Tomatoes, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes

# Neutral:

Baked Corn, Bamboo, Blue Magic Flowers, Buckwheat Flour,
Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Eggplant, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Fish (L),
Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Green Peppers, Honey, Mayonnaise (M),
Mayonnaise (S), Moon Drop Flowers, Mushrooms, Noodles, Pink Cat Flowers,
Red Magic Flowers, Spring Suns, Summer Suns, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves,
Toy Flowers, Truffles, Wine

# Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Animal Fodder, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Bodigizer, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Emeralds, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Junk Ore, Message Bottle, Moon Stones, Muffin Mix, Mystrile Ore, Orange Grass, Orichalc, Peridot, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Topaz, Turbojolt, White Grass, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S), Yellow Grass Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Branches, Curry Powder, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Flour, Golden Lumber, Old Boots, Oil, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Stones, Weeds

#### Schedule:

Days: Everyday (except Saturdays, With Winery Job)

Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 10:00am = Locked in the Inn 10:00am - 10:30am = Walking to the Winery 10:30am - 01:00pm = Cellar of the Winery 01:00pm - 04:00pm = Vineyard of the Winery 04:00pm - 05:00pm = Walking to the Church 05:00pm - 07:00pm = The Church 07:00pm - 08:00pm = Walking to the Inn 08:00pm - 10:00pm = 2nd Floor of Inn 10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the inn

Days: Saturdays (With Winery Job)

Weather: All

06:00am - 04:00pm = Locked in the Inn 04:00pm - 05:00pm = Walking to the Church

05:00pm - 07:00pm = The Church

07:00pm - 08:00pm = Walking to the Inn 08:00pm - 10:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Inn10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Inn

# Heart Events:

Which: BLACK Where: The Church

When: Tuesdays, Thursdays / Any season / 10am - 6pm

What: Cliff is depressed, and it's up to you to cheer him up.

"Be a man!" <<Bad>>
"Relax." <<Good>>

Which: PURPLE Where: The Church

When: Before Winery Job: Mondays, Wednesdays, Rainy Days / Any Season /

4pm exactly

After Winery Job: Monday, Wednesday, Friday, Sunday / Any season /

5 pm - 7pm

What: Cliff and Carter request your help cleaning the Church.

Don't help out <<Bad>>
Help out <<Good>>

\*NOTE! This event has 2 different trigger times depending on whether or

not Cliff has the Winery Job.

Which: BLUE

Where: Outside The Winery (coming from the SouthWest)
When: Monday, Wednesday, Friday / Any season / 3pm - 4pm

What: Cliff thanks you for helping him get the job at the Winery.

"Yes." <<Good>>
"Not really..." <<Bad>>

\*NOTE! This event can only trigger if Cliff gets the Winery job and has remained in Mineral Town. Also, you must have the largest version

of the rucksack and have an empty item slot available.

Which: Yellow Where: The Winery

When: Tuesday, Thursday, Sunday / Any season / 5pm - 7pm What: Manna and Duke want to know what you think of Cliff.

You think he thinks too much. <<Good>>
You think he has no bad points. <<Bad>>

\*NOTE! This event can only trigger if Cliff gets the Winery job and has

remained in Mineral Town.

# Rival Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: 2nd Floor of the Inn

When: Any day / Spring, Summer (only the first week), Autumn, Winter /

7pm - 9pm

What: Ann tries to make small talk with Cliff and asks him why he came to

Mineral Town.

\*NOTE! This event and the next one MUST be triggered BEFORE Cliff gets the

Winery job in the first year if you want him to eventually marry

Ann.

Which: BLUE

Where: The Church

When: Any day (except Saturday) / Raining / Spring, Summer / 11am - 4pm

What: Carter asks Ann to help Cliff make friends by introducing him

around town.

\*NOTE! This event MUST be triggered BEFORE Cliff gets the Winery job in

the first year in order to trigger the next two events.

Which: GREEN

Where: 1st Floor of the Inn

When: Saturdays / Any season / 10am - 1pm / Year 2 and later

 $\hbox{What:}\quad \hbox{Ann and Doug tell Cliff that they hope he stays in Mineral Town}$ 

forever.

\*NOTE! This event can only trigger if Cliff gets the Winery job and has remained in Mineral Town, and the previous 2 events have been witnessed.

Which: ORANGE

Where: Cellar of the Winery

When: Any day (except Saturday) / Any season / 10am - 1pm /

Year 4 and later

What: Duke comments on Cliff and Ann as a couple and then tries to

facilitate an engagement.

\*NOTE! This event can only trigger if Cliff gets the Winery job and has remained in Mineral Town, and the previous 3 events have been witnessed. Cliff and Ann will get married 7 days after this event.

# Other Events:

Ann & Cliff's Argument, Cliff Faints, Cliff Leaves Mineral Town, Customers For Kai, Helping At The Winery 2, No Room At The Clinic

# Festivals:

Fireworks Festival, Year End Sunrise

-----

IV.03. Doctor

Description: Raven-haired Doctor is Mineral Town's only doctor. He is very serious-minded, and although it was his parents that pressured him into this field of study, he is quite dedicated to his profession. He has a kind heart and cares about everyone in Mineral Town. He constantly strives to become a better physician. Yes, his first name really is Doctor.

Birthday: Autumn 19 (Alt: Autumn 25)

Sign: Scorpio

Family: None in Mineral Town

Get Some Extra Lovin': Get a check-up or buy medicine from Elli

Friend Recipe: Mixed Juice

Rival: Elli

Special Favorite Items:

# Loves:

Apples, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Buckwheat Flour, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Chirashi Sushi, Corn, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Fish (S), Green Peppers, HMSGB Apples, Pineapples, Pineapple Juice, Relaxation Tea, SUGDW Apples, Tomatoes

# Likes:

Bamboo, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Blue Magic Flowers, Fish (M), Fish (L), Fish Sticks, Green Grass, Honey, Hot Milk, Indigo Grass, Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Orange Grass, Poisonous Mushrooms, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Red Magic Flowers, Stew, White Grass, Wine, Yellow Grass Neutral:

Apple Pie, Bodigizer, Bread, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Cookies, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Eggplant, Flour, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Fried Noodles (Regular), Grapes, Grilled Fish, Ice Cream, Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Message Bottle, Miso Soup, Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix, Mushrooms, Noodles, Oil, Omelet Rice, Omelets, Pink Cat Flowers, Pudding, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Salad, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Scrambled Eggs, Spring Suns, Stones, Summer Suns, Sushi, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Toy Flowers, Truffles, Turbojolt, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S)

```
Dislikes:
     Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Animal Fodder, Branches, Cake, Chicken Feed,
     Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Copper Ore, Emeralds, Fluorite,
     Gold Ore, Junk Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Orichalc, Peridot, Rubies,
     Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Topaz, Weeds
Hates:
     Ancient Fossils, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Old Boots,
     Pirate Treasure, Pizza
Schedule:
     Days: Everyday (except Wednesday)
     Weather:
              All
          06:00am - 09:00am = Locked in the Clinic
          09:00am - 07:00pm = Mineral Clinic
          07:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Clinic
     Days: Wednesday
     Weather: Sunny
          06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in the Clinic
          07:00am - 07:30am = Walking to Mother's Hill
          07:30am - 10:00am = Base of Mother's Hill
          10:00am - 10:30am = Walking to the Clinic
          10:30am - 01:00pm = Mineral Clinic
          01:00pm - 01:30pm = Walking to the Library
          01:30pm - 04:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Library
          04:00pm - 04:30pm = Walking to the Clinic
          04:30pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Clinic
     Days: Wednesday
     Weather: Rainy, Snowing
          06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in the Clinic
          07:00am - 07:30am = Walking to the Church
          07:30am - 10:00am = The Church
          10:00am - 10:30am = Walking to the Clinic
          10:30am - 01:00pm = Mineral Clinic
          01:00pm - 01:30pm = Walking to Library
          01:30pm - 04:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Library
          04:00pm - 04:30pm = Walking to the Clinic
          04:30pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Clinic
Heart Events:
     Which: BLACK
     Where: Mineral Clinic
     When: Monday, Thursday, Saturday / Any season / 9am - 4pm
     What: The Doctor asks you to try a new medicine that he's improved.
               "No thanks." <<Bad>>
               "0...Okay."
                             <<Good>>
     Which: PURPLE
     Where: Mineral Clinic
     When: Monday, Friday, Saturday, Sunday / Any season / 9am - 4pm
     What: The Doctor asks you to try another new medicine that he's improved.
              You run away!
                                       <<Bad>>
              You seem interested.
                                      <<Good>>
     Which: BLUE
     Where: Mineral Clinic
     When: Any day (except Wednesday) / Any season / 9am - 4pm
     What: The Doctor has a gift for you, to help you relax.
              "What is it?" <<Good>>
```

"Mmm..." <<Bad>>

\*NOTE! You must have the largest version of the rucksack and have an empty item slot available in order to trigger this event.

Which: YELLOW

Where: Mineral Clinic

When: Monday, Friday, Saturday / Any season / 9am - 4pm

What: The Doctor voices his worries to you.

He should open his heart. <<Good>

# Rival Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: Mineral Clinic

When: Any day (except Tuesday, Wednesday) / Any season / 9am - 7pm

What: When Elli says that she feels tired, the Doctor tells her to take

it easy because he needs her.

Which: BLUE

Where: Ellen's House

When: Mondays / Any season / 9am - 7pm

What: The Doctor laments that he can't do more for Ellen and her legs.

Which: GREEN

Where: Mineral Clinic

When: Any day (except Tuesday, Wednesday) / Any season / 9am - 7pm /

Year 2 and later

What: When the Doctor has a slight cold, Elli tells him not to overwork

himself. He laughs and replies that she'd make a good wife.

Which: ORANGE

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Wednesdays / Sunny / Any season (except Winter) / 7pm - 10pm /

Year 4 and later  $\,$ 

What: The Doctor tells Elli that he couldn't do anything without her.

\*NOTE! The Doctor and Elli will get married 7 days after this event.

# Other Events:

Cliff Faints, Customers For Kai, Doctor's Mistake, Doctor's Parents, No Room At The Clinic, Sick Puppy, Stu Is Sick

# Festivals:

Cooking Festival, Cow Festival, Fireworks Festival, Autumn Horse Races

-----

IV.04. Elli

-----

Description: Elli is the town nurse who is constantly trying to better herself and her knowledge of medicine. Fairly even-tempered with short brown hair, she is also very kind and patient, and takes care of her grandmother Ellen and younger brother Stu. In FoMT, if you marry Elli, she will not quit her job at the Clinic.

Birthday: Spring 16 (Alt: Spring 20)

Sign: Taurus

Family: Ellen (grandmother), Stu (brother)

Get Some Extra Lovin': Buy medicine or get a check-up from the Doctor

Friend Recipe: None Rival: The Doctor

Special Favorite Items:

Hot Milk, Moon Dumplings, Red Magic Flowers

Loves:

Blue Magic Flowers, Diamonds, Earrings, Elli Leaves, Message Bottle, Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Muffin Mix, Pink Cat Flowers, Pink Diamonds, Recipe for French Fries, Strawberries, Strawberry Milk, Toy Flowers, White Grass

# Likes:

Amethysts, Apple Jam, Apple Pie, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Cake, Candied Potatoes, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Emeralds, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, French Toast, Grape Jam, Grape Juice, Greens, Grilled Fish, Ice Cream, Indigo Grass, Mixed Latte, Mountain Stew, Pancakes, Popcorn, Pudding, Pumpkin Pudding, Purple Grass, Relaxation Tea, Rice Cakes, Roasted Rice Cakes, Rubies, Salad, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Strawberry Jam, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Topaz, Vegetable Juice, Vegetable Latte

# Neutral:

Adamantite, Agate, Alexandrite, Apple Soufflé, Apples, Autumn Sun, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bamboo, Bamboo Rice, Bodigizer, Bodigizer XL, Boiled Eggs, Bread, Buckwheat Chips, Buckwheat Flour, Buckwheat Noodles, Butter, Cabbage, Carrots, Cheese Fondue, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Copper Ore, Corn Flakes, Cucumbers, Curry Bread, Curry Noodles, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Dinner Roll, Eggplant, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Eggs Over Rice, Flour, Fluorite, French Fries, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Fried Noodles (Regular), Fruit Juice, Fruit Latte, Gold Ore, Green Grass, Happy Eggplant, Honey, Jam Bun, Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Miso Soup, Mixed Juice, Moon Drop Flowers, Moon Stones, Mushrooms, Mushroom Rice, Mythic Stones, Mystrile Ore, Noodles, Oil, Orange Grass, Orichalc, Peridot, Pickled Turnips, Pickles, Pineapples, Pineapple Juice, Pizza, Potatoes, Potato Pancakes, Pumpkins, Pumpkin Stew, Raisin Bread, Red Grass, Rice Balls, Rice Gruel, Sand Roses, Savory Pancakes, Silver Ore, Spa-Boiled Eggs, Spinach, Spring Sun, Stew, Summer Sun, Sushi, Sweet Potatoes, Tempura, Tempura Buckwheat Noodles, Tempura Noodles, Tempura Rice, Toast, Toasted Rice Balls, Tomatoes, Truffles, Truffle Rice, Turbojolt, Turbojolt XL, Turnips, Wild Grapes, Winter Sun, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S)

# Dislikes:

Corn, Fried Rice, Green Peppers, Junk Ore, Ketchup, Omelet Rice, Omelets, Onions, Scrambled Eggs, Stir Fry, Tomato Juice, Wild Grape Juice, Wine, Yellow Grass

# Hates:

Ancient Fossil, Animal Fodder, Branches, Chicken Feed, Empty Cans, Failures, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Lumber, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Stones, Weeds

# Schedule:

Days: Every day (except Wednesdays)

Weather: All

06:00am - 09:00am = Locked in the Clinic

09:00am - 04:00am = Mineral Clinic

04:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Clinic

Days: Wednesdays

Weather: All

06:00am - 09:00am = Locked in the Clinic

09:00am - 09:30am = Walking to Ellen's House

09:30am - 01:00pm = Ellen's House

01:00pm - 01:20pm = Walking to the Supermarket

01:20pm - 04:00pm = The Supermarket

```
04:00pm - 04:10pm = Walking to Ellen's House
 04:10pm - 07:00pm = Ellen's House
 07:00pm - 07:20pm = Walking to the Clinic
 07:20pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Clinic
"Sure I do."
                 <<-2,000 Points>>
```

# Heart Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: Mineral Clinic

When: Any day (except Monday, Saturday) / Any season / 9am - 7pm

What: Elli gets mad at Stu when he shows her a bug, and asks you to take

sides.

"Not really..." <<+3,000 Points>>

Which: PURPLE

Where: Mineral Clinic

When: Thursday, Saturday, Sunday / Any season / 9am - 7pm

What: When Jeff gets sick, Elli accidentally brings the wrong medicine

bottle and loses confidence in herself.

"You'll make a great nurse." <<+3,000 Points>> "Hmm..." <<-2,000 Points>>

Which: BLUE

Where: Ellen's House

When: Wednesdays / Sunny / Any season / 9:30am - 1pm

What: Elli is distraught when Stu runs away, so you are asked to find

him.

<<-2,000 Points>> "Sorry, no." "Sure, I'll do it." <<+3,000 Points>>

\*NOTE! You must have the largest version of the rucksack and have an empty

item slot available in order to trigger this event.

Which: YELLOW

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Wednesdays / Sunny / Any season / 9am - 10:30am

What: Elli asks for your opinion on how she is raising Stu.

"You've spoiled him." <<-2,000 Points>> "You're doing a great job." <<+3,000 Points>>

# Rival Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: Mineral Clinic

When: Any day (except Tuesday, Wednesday) / Any season / 9am - 7pm

What: When Elli says that she feels tired, the Doctor tells her to take

it easy because he needs her.

Which: BLUE

Where: Ellen's House

When: Mondays / Any season / 9am - 7pm

What: The Doctor laments that he can't do more for Ellen and her legs.

Which: GREEN

Where: Mineral Clinic

When: Any day (except Tuesday, Wednesday) / Any season / 9am - 7pm /

Year 2 and later

What: When the Doctor has a slight cold, Elli tells him not to overwork

himself. He laughs and replies that she'd make a good wife.

Which: ORANGE

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Wednesdays / Sunny / Any season (except Winter) / 7pm - 10pm /

Year 4 and later

What: The Doctor tells Elli that he couldn't do anything without her. \*NOTE! Elli and The Doctor will get married 7 days after this event.

#### Other Events:

Cliff Faints, Cooking For The Girls, Customers For Kai, Doctor's Mistake, Ellen's Old Letter, Elli Studies Medicine, No Room At The Clinic, Playtime With Stu, Slumber Party, Stu Is Sick

#### Festivals:

New Year's Festival, Cow Festival, Fireworks Festival, Music Festival, Harvest Festival, Autumn Horse Races

-----

IV.05. Gray

-----

Description: Reserved and taciturn, the blond-haired Gray is in training to be a blacksmith. He is always arguing with his grandfather Saibara, but works very hard everyday. Originally from the city, Gray misses his old life. He may seem cold and distant, but underneath is a very amiable man with an open, sensitive side.

Birthday: Winter 6 (Alt: Winter 23)

Sign: Pisces

Family: Saibara (grandfather)

Get Some Extra Lovin': Upgrade items and do business at the Blacksmith's

Friend Recipe: None

Rival: Mary

Special Favorite Items:

# Loves:

Branches, Bread, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Corn, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Fish (L), Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Pizza, Rice Cakes, Scrambled Eggs, Tomatoes, Wine Likes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Apple Pie, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Cake, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Copper Ore, Curry Rice, Emeralds, Fluorite, Fried Noodles (Regular), Gold Ore, Ice Cream, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Omelet Rice, Orichalc, Peridot, Pudding, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Topaz

# Neutral:

Apples, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Blue Magic Flowers, Bodigizer,
Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Cucumbers, Curry Powder,
Eggplant, Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, HMSGB Apples, Honey,
Hot Milk, Indigo Grass, Grapes, Green Grass, Grilled Fish, Milk (L),
Milk (M), Milk (S), Miso Soup, Moon Drop Flowers, Mushrooms, Noodles, Oil,
Omelets, Orange Grass, Pineapples, Pineapple Juice, Pink Cat Flowers,
Purple Grass, Red Magic Flowers, Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Salad,
Sandwiches, Sashimi, Spring Suns, Stew, SUGDW Apples, Summer Suns, Sushi,
Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Toy Flowers, Truffles, Turbojolt, White Grass,
Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S)

# Dislikes:

Bamboo, Buckwheat Flour, Green Peppers, Junk Ore, Muffin Mix, Yellow Grass Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Chicken Feed, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Message Bottle, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Red Grass, Stones, Weeds

```
Schedule:
     Days: Every day (except Mondays, Thursdays) / After his Rival Black Heart
                                                    Event with Mary
     Weather:
          06:00am - 07:00am = 2nd Floor of the Inn
          07:00am - 08:30am = Walking to the Blacksmith's
          08:30am - 01:00pm = The Blacksmith's
          01:00pm - 01:30pm = Walking to the Library
          01:30pm - 04:00pm = The Library
          04:00pm - 05:00pm = Walking to the Inn
          05:00pm - 10:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Inn
          10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Inn
     Days: Monday / After his Rival Black Heart Event with Mary
     Weather:
          06:00am - 07:00am = 2nd Floor of the Inn
          07:00am - 07:30am = Walking to Rose Square
          07:30am - 08:00am = Rose Square
          08:00am - 08:30am = Walking to the Blacksmith's
          08:30am - 01:00pm = The Blacksmith's
          01:00pm - 02:00pm = Walking to the Inn
          02:00pm - 10:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Inn
          10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Inn
     Days: Thursday / After his Rival Black Heart Event with Mary
     Weather:
          06:00am - 07:00am = 2nd Floor of the Inn
          07:00am - 07:30am = Walking to Mother's Hill
          07:30am - 10:00am = Peak of Mother's Hill
          10:00am - 11:00am = Walking to the Blacksmith's
          11:00am - 01:00pm = The Blacksmith's
          01:00pm - 01:30pm = Walking to the Library
          01:30pm - 04:00pm = The Library
          04:00pm - 05:00pm = Walking to the Inn
          05:00pm - 10:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Inn
          10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Inn
Heart Events:
     Which: BLACK
     Where: The Blacksmith's
     When: Tuesday, Friday, Saturday, Sunday / Any season / 10am - 1pm
     What: You walk in on an argument between Gray and Saibara.
               "It's called TRAINING." <<Good>>
               "Just quit!"
                                         <<Bad>>
     Which: PURPLE
     Where: 2nd Floor of the Inn
     When: Tuesday, Thursday, Friday, Sunday / Any season / 5pm - 8pm
     What: Gray loses his confidence and it's up to you to cheer him up.
              He does a great job.
                                      <<Good>>
               He really sucks.
                                       <<Bad>>
     Which: BLUE
     Where: Exiting your house on the Farm
     When: Mondays / Sunny / Any season / 6am - Noon
     What: Gray stops by your farm to say "Hi", and asks if you like jewelry.
               "A little..."
                                  <<Good>>
               "Absolutely not!" <<Bad>>
     *NOTE! You must have the largest version of the rucksack and have an empty
            item slot available in order to trigger this event.
```

Which: YELLOW

Where: The Blacksmith's

When: Mondays / Any season / 10am - 1pm

What: Saibara lets Gray off early so that Gray can spend some time with

you.

You plan to stay. <<Good>> Leaving is a tempting idea. <<Bad>>

# Rival Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: The Blacksmith's

When: Mondays / Sunny / Any season / 10am - 1pm

What: Gray hurts his hand while working and Mary tends to it.

Which: BLUE

Where: 1st Floor of the Library

When: And day (except Mondays) / Any season / 1pm - 4pm

What: Gray and Mary are talking, and she asks him if he'd like to read

the novel she's writing.

Which: GREEN

Where: Peak of Mother's Hill

When: Tuesday, Friday, Saturday / Sunny / Any Season / 7am - 10am /

Year 2 and later

What: Mary encourages Gray to try hard and do his best at work.

Which: ORANGE

Where: 1st Floor of the Library

When: Fridays, Saturdays / Any season / 1pm - 4pm / Year 4 and later

What: Gray has a question to ask Mary, but only if he passes his

blacksmith's exam.

\*NOTE! Gray and Mary will get married 7 days after this event.

# Other Events:

Customers For Kai, Gray Visits Kai's Shop

# Festivals:

Fireworks Festival, Autumn Horse Races, Sheep Festival, Year End Sunrise

IV.06. Kai

-----

Description: With his hair hidden under a bandana, Kai travels to Mineral Town every Summer, and runs the restaurant on the beach. Essentially a foreigner, he is very friendly and an excellent chef. His popularity with the ladies (and choice of paint) caused a bit of animosity between him and some of the men in town, but Kai proves to be a true friend with a strong sense of integrity. In MoFo, if you marry Kai, he will stay in Mineral Town all year long.

Birthday: Summer 22 (Alt: Summer 17)

Sign: Leo

Family: None in Mineral Town

Get Some Extra Lovin': Buy anything from his restaurant

Friend Recipe: Popcorn

Rival: Popuri

Special Favorite Items:

Pineapples

```
Loves:
```

Bread, Corn, Curry Rice, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Fish (L), Flour, Oil, Omelet Rice, Omelets, Pineapple Juice, Tomatoes, Wine

#### Likes:

Apples, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Curry Powder, Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Grapes, Grilled Fish, HMSGB Apples, Honey, Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Salad, Sashimi, SUGDW Apples, Sushi, Tea Leaves

#### Neutral:

Apple Pie, Blue Magic Flowers, Bodigizer, Cake, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Cucumbers, Eggplant, Fried Noodles (Regular), Green Peppers, Hot Milk, Ice Cream, Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix, Pink Cat Flowers, Pudding, Red Magic Flowers, Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Sandwiches, Scrambled Eggs, Spring Sun, Stew, Summer Sun, Toy Flowers, Turbojolt

# Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bamboo, Buckwheat Flour, Copper Ore, Emeralds, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Junk Ore, Miso Soup, Moon Stones, Mushrooms, Mystrile Ore, Noodles, Orichalc, Peridot, Rice Cakes, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Sweet Potatoes, Topaz, Truffles, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S)

#### Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Branches, Chicken Feed, Chirashi Sushi, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Message Bottle, Old Boots, Orange Grass, Pirate Treasure, Pizza, Poisonous Mushrooms, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Stones, Weeds, White Grass, Yellow Grass

# Schedule:

Days: Every day (except Sundays) / Summers Only Weather:

06:00am - 08:00am = 2nd Floor of the Inn

08:00am - 08:30am = Walking to Mineral Beach

08:30am - 11:00am = Mineral Beach

11:00am - 01:00pm = Kai's Restaurant

01:00pm - 05:00pm = Mineral Beach

05:00pm - 07:00pm = Kai's Restaurant 07:00pm - 08:00pm = Walking to the Inn

or.oopiii oo.oopiii - warkiing to the iiii

08:00pm - 10:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Inn

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Inn

Days: Sunday / Summers Only

Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 01:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Inn

01:00pm - 01:30pm = Walking to Mineral Beach

01:30pm - 04:00pm = Mineral Beach

04:00pm - 05:00pm = Walking to the Inn

05:00pm - 10:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Inn

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Inn

Days: Sunday / Summers Only

Weather: Rainy

06:00am - 10:00pm = 2nd Floor of the Inn 10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Inn

# Heart Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Monday, Wednesday, Friday / Sunny /Summer / 11am - 1pm, 5pm - 7pm

What: Kai asks your opinion on family relations.

"Despise him." <<Bad>>
"Who cares?" <<Good>>

Which: PURPLE

Where: Kai's Restaurant

When: Monday, Wednesday, Friday / Summer / 11am - 1pm, 5pm - 7pm

What: Kai asks you about the crops you grow on your farm.

Which: BLUE

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Tuesdays, Fridays / Sunny /Summer / 1pm - 5pm

What: When you pass out in front of Kai, he takes you to the Clinic.

"I guess so." <<Good>>
"I'm fine." <<Bad>>

\*NOTE! This event can only trigger if your Stamina has been reduced to at least 50%. Do some work before you try to trigger it! Also, you must have the largest version of the rucksack and have an empty

item slot available.

Which: YELLOW

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Monday, Wednesday, Thursday, Saturday / Sunny /Summer / 9am - 11am What: Knowing that he's disliked by some of the people in town, Kai asks

your opinion of him.

He should be himself. <<Good>>
He should change. <<Bad>>

# Rival Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Sundays / Sunny /Summer / 1pm - 4pm

What: Popuri asks Kai to cook Lillia a meal, hoping it will boost

Lillia's health.

Which: BLUE

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday / Sunny /Summer / 9am - 7pm

What: When Popuri thanks Kai for Lillia's meal, their conversation is

interrupted by Rick.

Which: GREEN

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Sundays / Sunny /Summer / 1pm - 4pm / Year 2 and later

What: Popuri tells Kai of her desire to travel.

Which: ORANGE

Where: Inside the Poultry Farm

When: Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday / Sunny / Summer / 9am - 7pm /

Year 4 and later

What: When Popuri announces that she's leaving Mineral Town, Lillia has

but one stipulation.

\*NOTE! Kai and Popuri will get married 7 days after this event. Popuri

will then leave with Kai at the end of the month and only be

available during Summers.

Customers For Kai, Gray Visits Kai's Shop, Popuri's Necklace, Rick Vs. Kai, Welcome Back Kai

# Festivals:

Beach Day, Fireworks Festival

-----

IV.07. Karen

-----

Description: Beautiful and blond Karen is always full of fire and energy.

She is very friendly and intelligent. Besides her love of being sociable and the calming sound of ocean waves, she can really hold her liquor. Her strong and independent spirit connects with people's souls.

Birthday: Autumn 15 (Alt: Autumn 23)

Sign: Sagittarius

Family: Sasha (mother), Jeff (father)

Get Some Extra Lovin': Buy anything from the Supermarket

Friend Recipe: None

Rival: Rick

Special Favorite Items:

French Fries, Pizza, Popcorn

#### Loves:

Bamboo, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Diamonds, , Pink Diamonds, Sashimi, Tempura, Tempura Rice, Truffles, Wild Grape Juice, Wine Likes:

Amethysts, Baked Corn, Blue Magic Flowers, , Butter, Cheese Fondue, Corn, Cucumbers, Earrings, Eggplant, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Eggs Over Rice, Emeralds, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Green Peppers, Greens, Grilled Fish, Happy Eggplant, Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Miso Soup, Moon Drop Flowers, Pickled Turnips, Pickles, Pink Cat Flowers, Potatoes, Potato Pancakes, Pumpkins, Pumpkin Stew, Red Magic Flowers, Rubies, Salad, Scrambled Eggs, Spa-Boiled Eggs, Spinach, Stir Fry, Sweet Potatoes, Topaz, Toy Flowers

# Neutral:

Autumn Sun, Bamboo Rice, Boiled Eggs, Bread, Buckwheat Noodles, Cabbage, Carrots, Corn Flakes, Curry Bread, Curry Noodles, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Dinner Roll, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, French Toast, Fried Noodles (Regular), Fried Rice, Fruit Juice, Fruit Latte, Hot Milk, Ketchup, Message Bottle, Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Mixed Juice, Moon Dumplings, Mountain Stew, Muffin Mix, Mushrooms, Mushroom Rice, Noodles, Oil, Omelet Rice, Omelets, Onions, Peridot, Pineapples, Pineapple Juice, Pudding, Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Rice Gruel, Roasted Rice Cakes, Sandwiches, Savory Pancakes, Spring Sun, Stew, Strawberries, Summer Sun, Sushi, Tea Leaves, Tempura Buckwheat Noodles, Tempura Noodles, Toast, Toasted Rice Balls, Tomatoes, Tomato Juice, Truffle Rice, Turnips, Vegetable Juice, Vegetable Latte, Wild Grapes, Winter Sun

# Dislikes:

Agate, Apples, Apple Jam, Apple Pie, Apple Soufflé, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Bodigizer, Bodigizer XL, Buckwheat Chips, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Candied Potatoes, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Elli Leaves, Fluorite, Grape Jam, Grape Juice, Green Grass, Honey, Ice Cream, Indigo Grass, Jam Bun, Mixed Latte, Orange Grass, Pancakes, Pumpkin Pudding, Purple Grass, Raisin Bread, Red Grass, Strawberry Jam, Strawberry Milk, Sweet Potatoes, Turbojolt, Turbojolt XL, White Grass, Yellow Grass

Hates:

Adamantite, Alexandrite, Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Branches, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Empty Cans, Failures, Fish Scales, Gold Ore, Golden Lumber, Junk Ore, Lumber, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Mythic Stone, Old Boots, Orichalc, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushroom, Recipe for French Fries, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Stones, Weeds, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S) Schedule: Days: Everyday (except Tuesdays, Sundays) Weather: Sunny 06:00am - 08:00am = Locked in the Supermarket 08:00am - 10:00am = Bench outside the Supermarket 10:00am - 01:00pm = Backroom of the Supermarket 01:00pm - 04:00pm = The Supermarket04:00pm - 06:00pm = Backroom of the Supermarket 06:00pm - 07:00pm = Locked in the Supermarket 07:00pm - 08:00pm = Walking to the Beach08:00pm - 10:00pm = Mineral Beach 10:00pm - 11:00pm = Walking to the Supermarket 11:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Supermarket Days: Everyday (except Tuesdays, Sundays) Weather: Rainy, Snowing 06:00am - 08:00am = Locked in the Supermarket 08:00am - 10:00am = The Supermarket10:00am - 01:00pm = Backroom of the Supermarket 01:00pm - 04:00pm = The Supermarket 04:00pm - 06:00pm = Backroom of the Supermarket 06:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Supermarket Days: Tuesday Weather: Sunny 06:00am - 08:00am = Locked in the Supermarket 08:00am - 10:00am = Bench outside the Supermarket 10:00am - 01:00pm = Locked in the Supermarket 01:00pm - 02:00pm = Walking to the Hot Springs 02:00pm - 04:00pm = The Hot Springs04:00pm - 05:00pm = Walking to the Supermarket 05:00pm - 07:00pm = Locked in the Supermarket 07:00pm - 07:30pm = Walking to the Inn07:30pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn

10:00pm - 10:30pm = Walking to the Supermarket 10:30pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Supermarket

# Days: Tuesday

Weather: Rainy, Snowing

06:00am - 01:00pm = Locked in the Supermarket 01:00pm - 02:00pm = Walking to Gotz's House 02:00pm - 04:00pm = Gotz's House 04:00pm - 05:00pm = Walking to the Supermarket 05:00pm - 07:00pm = Locked in the Supermarket 07:00pm - 07:30pm = Walking to the Inn07:30pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn10:00pm - 10:30pm = Walking to the Supermarket

10:30pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Supermarket

Days: Sunday Weather: All

06:00am - 07:00pm = Locked in the Supermarket

07:00pm - 07:30pm = Walking to the Inn

07:30pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn 10:00pm - 10:30pm = Walking to the Supermarket 10:30pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Supermarket

#### Heart Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: The Supermarket

When: Wednesdays, Fridays / Any season / 10am - 1pm

What: As a welcome to Mineral Town, Karen offers you a free bag of Grass

seeds.

"I could use some help." <<+3,000 Points>> "No problem." << -0 Points>>

\*NOTE! You must have an empty tool slot available in order to trigger this

event.

Which: PURPLE

Where: The Supermarket

When: Monday, Thursday, Saturday / Any season / 10am - 1pm

What: Karen and Sasha are arguing about whose gift idea is better and

they ask you to choose.

"Moon drop seeds." <<+3,000 Points>> "Pink cat seeds." <<-2,000 Points>>

Which: BLUE

Where: The Supermarket

When: Wednesdays, Fridays / Sunny / Any season / 10am - 1pm

What: Karen receives a gift of some very special wine, and your help is

requested to go pick it up.

\*NOTE! You must have the largest version of the rucksack and have an empty

item slot available in order to trigger this event.

Which: YELLOW

Where: The Supermarket

When: Monday, Thursday, Saturday / Any season / 10am - 1pm

What: Karen's been cooking and she needs a taste-tester. Her parents are

very happy when you show up.

<<+3,000 Points>> "No thanks." <<-2,000 Points>>

# Rival Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: Exiting the Spring Mine

When: Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday / Sunny /Any season /

11am - 6pm

What: Karen cheers up Rick when he starts to worry about his father.

\*NOTE! This event will not trigger if you are carrying any items over your

head.

Which: BLUE

Where: Mineral Forest

When: Mondays, Sundays / Sunny / Any season (except Spring) / 11am - 6pm

What: When Karen and Rick reminisce about their youth, one memory has

Karen seeing red.

\*NOTE! This event will only trigger if you enter Mineral Forest via the

NorthEastern path or via exiting Gotz's house.

Which: GREEN

Where: Exiting the Spring Mine

When: Wednesdays, Fridays / Sunny / Any season / 11am - 6pm /

Year 2 and later

What: Rick gets hurt while protecting Karen.

Which: ORANGE

Where: Outside the Poultry Farm

When: Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday / Sunny / Any season (except Winter) /

1pm - 4pm / Year 4 and later

What: When Karen, Rick, and Lillia are chatting outside, Lillia tries to

play matchmaker.

\*NOTE! This event will only trigger after Popuri has married either you or

Kai. Karen and Rick will get married 7 days after this event.

# Other Events:

Cooking For The Girls, Customers For Kai, Golden Service Time, Karen Vs. Duke, Rick's Worries, Slumber Party

#### Festivals:

Spring Horse Races, Cooking Festival, Fireworks Festival, Music Festival, Harvest Festival, Sheep Festival

-----

IV.08. Mary

Description: Mary is the quiet, soft-spoken owner of the town's Library. With her knee-length black hair pulled behind her, she is an avid reader and yearns to become a great novelist. Since she is very humble, and tends to try not to call attention to herself, it is a wise person who realizes that she is beautiful, both inside and out. In FoMT, if you marry Mary, she will not quit her job at the Library.

Birthday: Winter 20 (Alt: Winter 25)

Sign: Capricorn

Family: Anna (mother), Basil (father)

Get Some Extra Lovin': Go up to the 2nd floor of the Library and read from one

bookshelf

Friend Recipe: None

Rival: Gray

# Special Favorite Items:

Relaxation Tea, Vegetable Juice, Vegetable Latte

# Loves:

Bamboo, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Diamonds, Elli Leaves, Grape Juice, Message Bottle, Muffin Mix, Pink Diamonds, Poisonous Mushrooms, Raisin Bread, Recipe for French Fries, Red Grass, Tea Leaves, Truffles, Turbojolt, Turbojolt XL, White Grass, Wild Grapes

# Likes:

Amethysts, Apples, Apple Jam, Apple Pie, Apple Soufflé, Bamboo Rice, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Cheese Cake, Cheese Fondue, Earrings, Emeralds, Grape Jam, Green Peppers, Honey, Indigo Grass, Jam Bun, Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Moon Dumplings, Mushroom Rice, Orange Grass, Pineapples, Pineapple Juice, Pumpkins, Pumpkin Pudding, Pumpkin Stew, Purple Grass, Rubies, Spinach, Strawberry Jam, Strawberry Milk, Tomatoes, Tomato Juice, Topaz, Truffle Rice, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S), Yellow Grass

# Neutral:

Adamantite, Agate, Alexandrite, Autumn Sun, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Blue Magic Flowers, Bodigizer, Bodigizer XL,

Boiled Eggs, Bread, Buckwheat Flour, Buckwheat Noodles, Cabbage, Cake, Candied Potatoes, Carrots, Cookies, Copper Ore, Corn, Corn Flakes, Cucumbers, Curry Noodles, Curry Powder, Dinner Roll, Eggplant, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Eggs Over Rice, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, Fluorite, French Fries, French Toast, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Fried Noodles (Regular), Fruit Juice, Fruit Latte, Gold Ore, Green Grass, Greens, Grilled Fish, Hot Milk, Ice Cream, Ketchup, Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Miso Soup, Mixed Juice, Mixed Latte, Moon Drop Flowers, Moon Stones, Mountain Stew, Mushrooms, Mystrile Ore, Mythic Stones, Noodles, Oil, Omelet Rice, Omelets, Onions, Orichalc, Pancakes, Peridot, Pink Cat Flowers, Pizza, Popcorn, Potatoes, Potato Pancakes, Pudding, Red Magic Flowers, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Rice Gruel, Roasted Rice Cakes, Salad, Sand Roses, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Scrambled Eggs, Silver Ore, Spa-Boiled Eggs, Spring Sun, Stew, Stir Fry, Strawberries, Summer Sun, Sushi, Sweet Potatoes, Tempura, Tempura Buckwheat Noodles, Tempura Noodles, Tempura Rice, Toast, Toasted Rice Balls, Toy Flowers, Turnips, Wild Grape Juice, Wine, Winter Sun

#### Dislikes:

Animal Fodder, Buckwheat Chips, Butter, Chicken Feed, Curry Bread, Curry Rice, Failures, Fried Rice, Happy Eggplant, Junk Ore, Lumber, Pickled Turnips, Pickles, Savory Pancakes

#### Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Branches, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Stones, Weeds

#### Schedule:

Days: Everyday (except Mondays) Weather: All 06:00am - 10:00am = Locked in her House 10:00am - 10:10am = Walking to the Library 10:10am - 04:00pm = The Library 04:00pm - 06:00pm = Locked in the Library 06:00pm - 06:10pm = Walking to her House 06:10pm - 07:00pm = Her House

07:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in her House

# Days: Monday Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in her House 07:00am - 07:30am = Walking to Mother's Hill 07:30am - 10:00am = Mother's Hill (the Meadow) 10:00am - 11:30am = Walking to her House 11:30am - 01:00pm = Her House 01:00pm - 01:20pm = Walking to the Supermarket 01:20pm - 04:00pm = The Supermarket 04:00pm - 04:20pm = Walking to her House04:20pm - 07:00pm = Her House

# Days: Monday

Weather: Rainy, Snowing 06:00am - 10:00am = Locked in her House 01:00pm - 01:20pm = Walking to the Supermarket

01:20pm - 04:00pm = The Supermarket

04:00pm - 04:20pm = Walking to her House

07:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in her House

04:20pm - 10:00pm = Her House

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in her House

# Heart Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: 1st Floor of the Library

When: Any day (except Monday) / Any season / 10am - 4pm

What: While Mary is lost in thought, she bumps into you and apologizes.

"Can I help?" <<+3,000 Points>> "Be careful." << -0 Points>>

Which: PURPLE

Where: 1st Floor of the Library

When: Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday, Sunday / Any season / 10am - 4pm

What: Mary asks for your help in finding a misplaced book.

"I'd be glad to." <<+3,000 Points>> "Sorry, I don't want to." <<-2,000 Points>>

Which: BLUE

Where: Peak of Mother's Hill

When: Mondays / Sunny / Any season / Noon - 5pm

What: When you find Mary crying, she explains that it's because of her

book and asks if you ever cry while reading a sad story.

"Sometimes." <<+3,000 Points>> "Never." <<-2,000 Points>>

\*NOTE! You must have the largest version of the rucksack and have an empty item slot available in order to trigger this event.

Which: YELLOW

Where: Mary's House

When: Mondays / Any season / 11:30am - 1pm

What: Mary's stumped for an idea for her next novel and wants your

"I can't think of anything." <<-2,000 Points>> "How about a farm story?" <<+3,000 Points>> << -0 Points>> "How about Basil's job?"

# Rival Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: The Blacksmith's

When: Mondays / Sunny / Any season / 10am - 1pm

What: Gray hurts his hand while working and Mary tends to it.

Which: BLUE

Where: 1st Floor of the Library

When: Any day (except Mondays) / Any season / 1pm - 4pm

What: Mary and Gray are talking, and she asks him if he'd like to read

the novel she's writing.

Which: GREEN

Where: Peak of Mother's Hill

When: Tuesday, Friday, Saturday / Sunny / Any Season / 7am - 10am /

Year 2 and later

What: Mary encourages Gray to try hard and do his best at work.

Which: ORANGE

Where: 1st Floor of the Library

When: Fridays, Saturdays / Any season / 1pm - 4pm / Year 4 and later

What: Gray has a question to ask Mary, but only if he passes his

blacksmith's exam.

\*NOTE! Mary and Gray will get married 7 days after this event.

# Other Events:

Cooking For The Girls, Customers For Kai, Helping Out Basil,

Slumber Party

# Festivals:

Fireworks Festival, Music Festival, Harvest Festival, Autumn Horse Races, Year End Sunrise

-----

IV.09. Popuri

-----

Description: Popuri is a very bubbly and happy pink-haired girl, who is eager to please and has a love for chickens and flowers. Always optimistic and curious, she longs to learn more about the world. Popuri has a refreshing child-like spirit that makes people smile.

Birthday: Summer 3 (Alt: Summer 10)

Sign: Cancer

Family: Lillia (mother), Rick (brother), Rod (father)
Get Some Extra Lovin': Buy anything from the Poultry Farm

Friend Recipe: None

Rival: Kai

Special Favorite Items:

Omelet Rice, Omelets, Scrambled Eggs

#### Loves:

Apples, Apple Jam, Apple Pie, Apple Soufflé, Boiled Eggs, Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Diamonds, Earrings, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Eggs Over Rice, Fruit Juice, Ice Cream, Pancakes, Pink Diamonds, Pudding, Relaxation Tea, Sandwiches, Strawberries, Strawberry Jam, Strawberry Milk, Sunblock

#### Likes:

Amethysts, Baked Corn, Bamboo Rice, Bread, Candied Potatoes, Emeralds, Flour, French Fries, French Toast, Grape Jam, Grape Juice, Honey, Hot Milk, Ketchup, Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Pineapples, Pineapple Juice, Pink Cat Flowers, Popcorn, Pumpkin Pudding, Ruby, Savory Pancakes, Stew, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Toast, Topaz, Toy Flowers, Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S)

# Neutral:

Adamantite, Autumn Sun, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bamboo, Blue Magic Flowers, Buckwheat Chips, Buckwheat Noodles, Butter, Cabbage, Carrots, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Cheese Cake, Cheese Fondue, Corn, Corn Flakes, Cucumbers, Curry Bread, Curry Noodles, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Dinner Roll, Elli Leaves, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Fried Noodles (Regular), Fried Rice, Fruit Latte, Greens, Grilled Fish, Jam Bun, Miso Soup, Moon Drop Flowers, Moon Dumplings, Mountain Stew, Muffin Mix, Mushrooms, Mushroom Rice, Noodles, Oil, Onions, Peridot, Pickles, Pizza, Potatoes, Potato Pancakes, Raisin Bread, Red Magic Flowers, Rice Balls, Rice Gruel, Salad, Sashimi, Spa-Boiled Eggs, Spinach, Spring Sun, Stir Fry, Summer Sun, Sushi, Sweet Potatoes, Tempura, Tempura Buckwheat Noodles, Tempura Noodles, Tempura Rice, Toasted Rice Balls, Tomatoes, Truffles, Truffle Rice, Weeds, Wild Grapes, Winter Sun, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S)

# Dislikes:

Agate, Alexandrite, Buckwheat Flour, Copper Ore, Eggplant, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Green Peppers, Happy Eggplant, Junk Ore, Mixed Juice, Mixed Latte, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Mythic Stones, Orichalc, Pickled Turnips, Pumpkins, Pumpkin Stew, Rice Cakes, Roasted Rice Cakes, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Tomato Juice, Turnips, Vegetable Juice, Vegetable Latte

# Hates

Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Bodigizer,

Bodigizer XL, Branches, Chicken Feed, Empty Cans, Failures, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Lumber, Message Bottle, Old Boots, Orange Grass, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Purple Grass, Recipe for French Fries, Red Grass, Stones, Turbojolt, Turbojolt XL, White Grass, Wild Grape Juice, Wine, Yellow Grass

# Schedule:

Days: Everyday (except Sunday) Weather: Sunny 06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm 07:00am - 07:30am = Walking to the Hot Springs 07:30am - 10:00am = The Hot Springs10:00am - 10:30am = Walking to the Poultry Farm 11:00am - 07:00pm = The Poultry Farm07:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm Days: Everyday (except Sunday) Weather: Rainy, Snowing 06:00am - 11:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm 11:00am - 07:00pm = The Poultry Farm07:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm Days: Sunday Weather: Sunny 06:00am - 09:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm 09:00am - 10:10am = Walking to the Church 10:10am - 01:00pm = The Church01:00pm - 01:20pm = Walking to Rose Square

01:20pm - 04:00pm = Rose Square

04:00pm - 04:50pm = Walking to the Poultry Farm

04:50pm - 07:00pm = The Poultry Farm

07:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm

Days: Sunday

Weather: Rainy, Snowing

06:00am - 09:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm

09:00am - 10:10am = Walking to the Church

10:10am - 04:00pm = The Church

04:00pm - 05:20pm = Walking to the Poultry Farm

05:20pm - 07:00pm = The Poultry Farm

07:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm

# Heart Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: Exiting the Blacksmith's

When: Wednesdays, Fridays / Sunny / Spring / 11am - 1pm

What: One of the Poultry Farm's chickens gets loose and you manage to

catch it.

<<+3,000 Points>> "Yes, I do." "No, I don't." <<-2,000 Points>>

Which: PURPLE

Where: Exiting your house on the Farm

When: Any day (except Saturday, Sunday) / Sunny / Any season / 6am - Noon

What: Popuri comes by one morning and asks for a tour of your farm.

"I'm too busy now!" <<-2,000 Points>> "Sure." <<+3,000 Points>>

Which: BLUE

Where: The Church

When: Sundays / Any season (except Summer) / 10am - 1pm

What: Carter, Popuri, May, and Stu are playing. When May wants to play "House", Carter thinks it inappropriate for him and asks you to

take his place.

"Sure, I'll play." <<+3,000 Points>>
"Sorry, I've got work." << -0 Points>>

\*NOTE! You must have the largest version of the rucksack and have an empty item slot available in order to trigger this event.

Which: YELLOW

Where: Inside the Poultry Farm

When: Any day (except Tuesday, Sunday) / Any season / 11am - 1pm

What: Popuri and Rick are arguing about their absent father, and ask you

to take sides.

"I agree with Popuri." <<+3,000 Points>>
"I agree with Rick." <<-2,000 Points>>
"Poor Lillia." <<+3,000 Points>>

\*NOTE! Answering "Poor Lillia" is the best response, as you lose points with Popuri if you side with Rick, and you lose points with Rick if you side with Popuri.

#### Rival Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Sundays / Sunny / Summer / 1pm - 4pm

What: Popuri asks Kai to cook Lillia a meal, hoping it will boost

Lillia's health.

Which: BLUE

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday / Sunny / Summer / 9am - 7pm

What: When Popuri thanks Kai for Lillia's meal, their conversation is

interrupted by Rick.

Which: GREEN

Where: Mineral Beach

When: Sundays / Sunny /Summer / 1pm - 4pm / Year 2 and later

What: Popuri tells Kai of her desire to travel.

Which: ORANGE

Where: Inside the Poultry Farm

When: Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday / Sunny / Summer / 9am - 7pm /

Year 4 and later

What: When Popuri announces that she's leaving Mineral Town, Lillia has

but one stipulation.

\*NOTE! Popuri and Kai will get married 7 days after this event. Popuri

will then leave with Kai at the end of the month and only be

available during Summers.

## Other Events:

Cooking For The Girls, Customers For Kai, Medicine For Lillia, Gift For Lillia, Letter From Rod, Popuri's Necklace, Slumber Party, Welcome Back Kai

## Festivals:

Spring Horse Races, Beach Day, Chicken Festival, Cow Festival, Fireworks Festival, Pumpkin Festival

-----

IV.10. Rick

Description: Rick is a nice young man who works very hard to take care of his family. He is fiercely protective of his mother Lillia and sister Popuri, so sometimes comes across as aggressive. With his shoulder length auburn hair tamed by a headband, the bespectacled Rick proves that he can be a very devoted friend.

Birthday: Autumn 27 (Alt: Autumn 23)

Sign: Scorpio

Family: Lillia (mother), Popuri (sister), Rod (father) Get Some Extra Lovin': Buy anything from the Poultry Farm

Friend Recipe: None

Rival: Karen

Special Favorite Items:

## Loves:

Bodigizer, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Chicken Feed, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate, Corn, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Fish (L), Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Omelet Rice, Omelets, Pudding, Scrambled Eggs

#### Likes:

Blue Grass, Blue Magic Flowers, Cheese Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Fish (M), Fish Sticks, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Mushrooms, Pineapples, Pineapple Juice, Purple Grass, Red Magic Flowers, Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Tea Leaves, White Grass

#### Neutral:

Apple Pie, Baked Corn, Bread, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Chirashi Sushi, Cookies, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Eggplant, Fish (S), Flour, Fried Noodles (Regular), Green Peppers, Grilled Fish, HMSGB Apples, Ice Cream, Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Miso Soup, Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix, Noodles, Oil, Orange Grass, Pink Cat Flowers, Pizza, Salad, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Spring Suns, SUGDW Apples, Summer Suns, Sushi, Tomatoes, Toy Flowers, Truffles, Turbojolt

## Dislikes:

Baked Sweet Potatoes, Hot Milk, Rice Cakes, Sweet Potatoes, Yellow Grass Hates:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Branches, Copper Ore, Curry Rice, Emeralds, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Golden Lumber, Junk Ore, Message Bottle, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Orichalc, Old Boots, Peridot, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Red Grass, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Stew, Stones, Topaz, Weeds, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S) Yarn (S)

## Schedule:

Days: Every day (except Tuesdays)

Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 07:00am = Outside the Poultry Farm
07:00am - 08:00am = Walking to the Supermarket
08:00am - 10:00am = Bench outside the Supermarket
10:00am - 11:30am = Walking to the Poultry Farm
11:30am - 01:00pm = Inside the Poultry Farm
01:00pm - 04:00pm = Outside the Poultry Farm
04:00pm - 07:00pm = Inside the Poultry Farm
07:00pm - 08:30pm = Walking to the Inn
08:30pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn

00:00pm - 00:00pm = Walking to the Poultry Farm

00:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm

```
Days: Every day (except Tuesdays)
    Weather: Rainy, Snowing
          06:00am - 07:00am = Outside the Poultry Farm
          07:00am - 07:00pm = Inside the Poultry Farm (either 1st or 2nd floor)
          07:00pm - 08:30pm = Walking to the Inn
          08:30pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn
          00:00pm - 00:00pm = Walking to the Poultry Farm
          00:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm
        Days: Tuesday
        Weather: All
          06:00am - 07:00am = Outside the Poultry Farm
          07:00am - 08:00am = Walking to Rose Square
         08:00am - 10:00am = Rose Square
          10:00am - 11:00am = Walking to the Poultry Farm
          11:00am - 01:00pm = Inside the Poultry Farm
          01:00pm - 05:00pm = The Blacksmith's
          04:00pm - 07:00pm = Inside the Poultry Farm
          07:00pm - 08:30pm = Walking to the Inn
          08:30pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn
          00:00pm - 00:00pm = Walking to the Poultry Farm
          00:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm
Heart Events:
    Which: BLACK
    Where: Inside the Poultry Farm
    When: Monday, Wednesday, Friday / Any season / 11am - 1pm
    What: Rick asks you whether or not you like eggs.
               "LOVE them."
                              <<Good>>
              "Not really."
                              <<Bad>>
     *NOTE! You must have an empty item slot available in order to trigger this
            event.
    Which: PURPLE
    Where: Inside the Poultry Farm
    When: Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday / Any season / 11:30am - 1pm
    What: Rick quizzes you on hatching eggs.
              "3 days."
                          <<Good>>
               "1 week."
                            <<Bad>>
    Which: BLUE
    Where: Inside the Poultry Farm
    When: Monday, Wednesday, Friday, Saturday / Any season / 11am - 3pm
    What: Rick becomes sad after talking about his father.
               "Little bit."
               "Absolutely not."
                                  <<Good>>
     *NOTE! You must have the largest version of the rucksack and have an empty
            item slot available in order to trigger this event.
    Which: YELLOW
    Where: 1st Floor of the Inn
    When: Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday / Any season / 8:30pm - 10pm
    What: After a long, but fun conversation at the Inn, Rick offers to
            escort you home.
              Let him walk you home.
                                        <<Good>>
              Turn him down.
                                         <<Bad>>
```

## Rival Events:

Which: BLACK

Where: Exiting the Spring Mine

When: Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday / Sunny /Any season /

11am - 6pm

What: Karen cheers up Rick when he starts to worry about his father.

\*NOTE! This event will not trigger if you are carrying any items over your

head.

Which: BLUE

Where: Mineral Forest

When: Mondays, Sundays / Sunny / Any season (except Spring) / 11am - 6pm

What: When Rick and Karen reminisce about their youth, one memory has

Karen seeing red.

\*NOTE! This event will only trigger if you enter Mineral Forest via the

NorthEastern path or via exiting Gotz's house.

Which: GREEN

Where: Exiting the Spring Mine

When: Wednesdays, Fridays / Sunny / Any season / 11am - 6pm /

Year 2 and later

What: Rick gets hurt while protecting Karen.

Which: ORANGE

Where: Outside the Poultry Farm

When: Tuesday, Thursday, Saturday / Sunny / Any season (except Winter) /

1pm - 4pm / Year 4 and later

What: When Rick, Karen, and Lillia are chatting outside, Lillia tries to

play matchmaker.

\*NOTE! This event will only trigger after Popuri has married either you or

Kai. Rick and Karen will get married 7 days after this event.

## Other Events:

Customers For Kai, Medicine For Lillia, Letter From Rod, Rick Vs. Kai, Rick's Worries

## Festivals:

Spring Horse Races, Cooking Festival, Chicken Festival, Cow Festival, Fireworks Festival, Autumn Horse Races, Sheep Festival

\_\_\_\_\_

## V. "SECRET LOVERS"

(SPECIAL BACHELORETTES/BACHELORS)

-----

Each game has a special character you can attempt to marry. In FoMT, you can try to marry the Harvest Goddess. In MoFo, you actually get three; you can try to marry the Gourmet, Kappa, and Won. These characters are very difficult, as they involve extra requirements and may not be as readily available as the main marriage candidates. They also have invisible heart levels, so you won't know if and when you get them to Red Heart.

-----

## V.01. The Gourmet

-----

Description: The robust and rotund Gourmet travels to towns all around the world, tasting all that they have to offer. Everyone bows to his discerning palate and he is quite famous. Each year, he comes and judges the Cooking Festival in Mineral Town, but in MoFo, he is also a character that you can marry.

Birthday: Spring 21 (Alt: Spring 20)

Sign: Taurus
Family: None

Get Some Extra Lovin': N/A

Friend Recipe: None

Rival: None

Special Favorite Items:

N/A

Loves:

N/A

Likes:

Baked Sweet Potatoes, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate Cake, Cookies, Curry Bread, Curry Rice, Fish Sticks, Grilled Fish, Jam Bun, Moon Dumplings, Mushroom Rice, Salad, Sashimi, Scrambled Eggs, Sushi, Toasted Rice Balls, Truffle Rice

## Neutral:

Apples, Bamboo, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Bread, Buckwheat Flour, Cabbage, Carrots, Chocolate, Corn, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Eggplant, Eggs (S), Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Flour, Grapes, Green Grass, Green Peppers, Grilled Fish, HMSGB Apples, Honey, Indigo Grass, Milk (S), Muffin Mix, Mushrooms, Oil, Onions, Orange Grass, Pineapples, Poisonous Mushrooms, Potatoes, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Spinach, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Truffles, Turnips, White Grass, Wine, Yellow Grass

## Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Animal Fodder, Blue Magic Flowers, Branches, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Diamonds, Doggie Ball, Emeralds, Empty Cans, Facial Masks, Fish Scales, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Golden Lumber, Lotion, Moon Drop Flowers, Mystrile Ore, Old Boots, Orichalc, Peridot, Pink Cat Flowers, Red Magic Flowers, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Spring Sun, Stones, Sunblock, Topaz, Toy Flowers, Weeds, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (M), Yarn (S)

## Hates:

Failures

## Schedule:

Days: Cooking Festival (MoFo Only)

Weather: Sunny

06:00pm - 08:00pm = Rose Square

## Requirements To Marry:

Fulfill all the normal requirements stated in Section III, Part 03. Win the Cooking Festival once in each of the 5 categories. Complete your recipe book with all 108 recipes.

## Events:

Customers For Kai, A Gourmet Dinner

## Festivals:

Cooking Festival

## 77 00 ml 77 1 0 11

## V.02. The Harvest Goddess

Description: The beautiful aqua-haired Harvest Goddess is Mineral Town's local deity. When it comes to offerings and tributes, she tells it like it is. Confident and powerful, if she likes you, she may grant you a gift. In FoMT, she is also a character that you can

marry.

In order to talk to the Harvest Goddess, you have to visit her where she lives. Just next to the Hot Springs, there is a waterfall which flows into a small pool. This area is known as the Harvest Goddess's Pond/Pool. Throw an item into the pool to make an offering to the Goddess and cause her to appear. Remember that \*anything\* you throw into that pond is considered as giving her a gift!

Birthday: Spring 8 (Alt: Spring 9)

Sign: Aries
Family: None

Get Some Extra Lovin':

Walk 10,000... 100,000... 1,000,000... steps using the pedometer.

Ship 10,000... 100,000... 1,000,000... of any one item.

Catch 10,000... 100,000... 1,000,000... of any one fish species.

Dig down to levels 100, 200, and 225 of both Mines.

Play and win the Harvest Goddess's TV game.

Friend Recipe: None

Rival: None

Special Favorite Items:

N/A

Loves:

Pineapples, Strawberries

Likes:

Blue Magic Flowers, Corn, Cucumbers, Eggplant, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Green Peppers, Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Moon Drop Flowers, Pink Cat Flowers, Red Magic Flowers, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Toy Flowers

## Neutral:

Apples, Bamboo, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Grapes, Green Grass, HMSGB Apples, Honey, Indigo Grass, Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Mushrooms, Orange Grass, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Spring Suns, SUGDW Apples, Summer Suns, Truffles, White Grass, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S), Yellow Grass

## Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Animal Fodder, Apple Pie, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bodigizer, Branches, Bread, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Cheese Cake, Chicken Feed, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Copper Ore, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Emeralds, Fish Sticks, Flour, Fluorite, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Fried Noodles (Regular), Gold Ore, Grilled Fish, Hot Milk, Ice Cream, Junk Ore, Lotion, Message Bottle, Miso Soup, Moon Stones, Muffin Mix, Mystrile Ore, Noodles, Oil, Omelets, Orichalc, Perfume, Peridot, Pizza, Poisonous Mushrooms, Pudding, Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Rubies, Salad, Sand Roses, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Silver Ore, Stew, Stones, Sushi, Topaz, Turbojolt, Weeds, Wine

## Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure

## Schedule:

Days: Everyday Weather: All

06:00am - 06:00am = Harvest Goddess's Pond

## Requirements To Marry:

Fulfill all the normal requirements stated in Section III, Part 03. Ship one of every shippable item.

```
Catch one of every species of fish (including the Kingfish).
     Find all 9 of the Harvest Goddess jewels.
     Dig up one of every item found in the Spring Mine.
     Dig up one of every item found in the Winter Mine.
     Be in your fifth year of the game or later.
     Confess to Carter that you want to marry the Harvest Goddess and be
          forgiven.
Events:
        Customers For Kai
Festivals:
       None
     _____
     V.03. Kappa
     _____
Description: The anti-social, gruff and green Kappa is Mineral Town's very own
             lake demon. He loves cucumbers and being left alone, but in
             MoFo, he is also a character that you can marry.
              In order to talk to Kappa, you have to visit him where he lives.
              Kappa lives in the large lake at the base of Mother's Hill. This
              is why the lake is also often called Kappa's Lake. Throw a
              Cucumber into the lake to cause him to appear. Even though he
              almost always refuses to talk to you, he really does love
              receiving Cucumbers. Kappa is not available during the Winter.
Birthday: Spring 8 (Alt: Spring 9)
Sign: Aries
Family: None
Get Some Extra Lovin':
     Walk 10,000... 100,000... 1,000,000... steps using the pedometer.
     Ship 10,000... 100,000... 1,000,000... of any one item.
     Catch 10,000... 100,000... 1,000,000... of any one fish species.
     Dig down to levels 100, 200, and 225 of both Mines.
Friend Recipe: None
Rival: None
Special Favorite Items:
    Cucumbers
Loves:
    N/A
Likes:
    N/A
Neutral:
    N/A
Dislikes:
     N/A
Hates:
     N/A
Schedule:
     Days: Everyday / Any Season (except Winter)
     Weather: All
          06:00am - 06:00am = Mother's Hill Lake
Requirements To Marry:
     Fulfill all the normal requirements stated in Section III, Part 03.
```

Ship one of every shippable item.

Catch one of every species of fish (including the Kingfish). Find all 9 of the Kappa jewels.

Dig up one of every item found in the Spring Mine.

Dig up one of every item found in the Winter Mine.

Be in your fifth year of the game or later.

Confess to Carter that you want to marry Kappa and be forgiven.

## Events:

Customers For Kai

Festivals:

None

-----

V.04. Won

\_\_\_\_\_

Description: Dark-haired Won is a traveling salesman who decided to take up residence in Mineral Town. He is a very shrewd businessman, but fair, and his merchandise is always of high quality. In MoFo, not only are you now able to sell items to him, but he is also a character that you can marry.

Birthday: Winter 19 (Alt: Winter 21)

Sign: Capricorn

Family: None In Mineral Town

Get Some Extra Lovin': Buy anything from his shop

Friend Recipe: None

Rival: None

Special Favorite Items:

## Loves:

Adamantite, Ancient Fossils, Emeralds, Gold Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Orichalc, Peridot, Pirate Treasure, Rubies, Sand Roses, Topaz

## Likes:

Apples, HMSGB Apples, SUGDW Apples

## Neutral:

Agate, Amethysts, Apple Pie, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bamboo, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Blue Magic Flowers, Bodigizer, Bread, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Cheese (L), Cheese (M), Cheese (S), Cheese Cake, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Corn, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Eggplant, Eggs (M), Eggs (S), Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, Fluorite, Fried Noodles (Buckwheat), Fried Noodles (Regular), Grapes, Green Grass, Green Peppers, Grilled Fish, Honey, Hot Milk, Ice Cream, Indigo Grass, Mayonnaise (M), Mayonnaise (S), Milk (L), Milk (M), Milk (S), Miso Soup, Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix, Mushrooms, Noodles, Oil, Omelets, Orange Grass, Pineapples, Pink Cat Flowers, Pizza, Pudding, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Red Magic Flowers, Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Salad, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Spring Suns, Stew, Summer Suns, Sushi, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Toy Flowers, Truffles, Turbojolt, White Grass, Wine, Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S) Yarn (S), Yellow Grass

## Dislikes:

Copper Ore, Junk Ore, Silver Ore

## Hates:

Animal Fodder, Branches, Chicken Feed, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Message Bottle, Old Boots, Poisonous Mushrooms, Stones, Weeds

## Schedule:

Days: Everyday Weather: All

06:00am - 07:00am = Zack's Place

07:00am - 11:00am = Locked in Zack's Place

11:00am - 04:20pm = Zack's Place

04:20pm - 08:10pm = Locked in Zack's Place

08:10pm - 10:00pm = Zack's Place

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in Zack's Place

## Requirements To Marry:

Fulfill all the normal requirements stated in Section III, Part 03.

Buy the Vase from Won.

View the Mixed-Up Apples event.

Unlock the ability to sell items to Won.

Unlock the Apple Game feature.

## Other Events:

Customers For Kai, Free Fishing Rod, Golden Service Time, Mixed-Up Apples

#### Festivals:

None

\_\_\_\_\_\_

# VI. "WITH A LITTLE HELP FROM MY FRIENDS" (THE TOWNSPEOPLE)

\_\_\_\_\_

This section lists all of the other townsfolk of Mineral Town. You can't marry them, but there are still lots of benefits to be gained from becoming friends.

-----

VI.01. Anna

-----

Description: Anna is a very social and elegant lady who loves to talk and spend time with her friends. A housewife, she keeps her long dark hair pinned up, and is famous in town for her skills as a dessert chef.

Birthday: Autumn 23

Sign: Scorpio

Family: Basil (husband), Mary (daughter)

Friend Recipe: (see "Anna's Cooking School" event)

## Loves:

Apples, Buckwheat Flour, Cheese (S), Chocolate, Corn, Eggs (S), Flour, Grapes, HMSGB Apples, Honey, Ice Cream, Milk (S), Muffin Mix, Oil, Pineapples, SUGDW Apples, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Wine

## Likes:

Amethysts, Emeralds, Grilled Fish, Omelets, Rubies, Salad, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Topaz

## Neutral:

Apple Pie, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bread, Cake, Cheese Cake, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Cucumbers, Curry Rice, Eggplant, Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Green Peppers, Hot Milk, Mayonnaise (S), Miso Soup, Noodles, Peridot, Pizza, Pudding, Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Spring Suns, Stew, Summer Suns,

Sushi, Tomatoes, Truffles

## Dislikes:

Bamboo, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Blue Magic Flowers, Bodigizer, Branches, Curry Powder, Fish (L), Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Message Bottle, Moon Drop Flowers, Mushrooms, Orange Grass, Pink Cat Flowers, Poisonous Mushrooms, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Red Magic Flowers, Toy Flowers, Turbojolt, White Grass, Wool (M), Yarn (S), Yellow Grass

Hates:

Adamantite, Agate, Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Golden Lumber, Junk Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Old Boots, Orichalc, Pirate Treasure, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Stones, Weeds

#### Schedule:

Days: Sunday
Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 10:00am = Locked in her House

10:00am - 01:00pm = Her House

01:00pm - 02:00pm = Walking to Rose Square

02:00pm - 04:00pm = Rose Square

04:00pm - 05:10pm = Walking to her House

05:10pm - 10:00pm = Her House

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in her House

#### Events:

Advice For Manna, Anna's Cooking School, Customers For Kai

## Festivals:

Sheep Festival, Year End Sunrise

-----

VI.02. Barley

-----

Description: A very friendly and bespectacled older man, Barley runs Yodel Farm. The authority on cows and sheep, he organizes and hosts both festivals each year. He is very devoted to his granddaughter May, and does his best to raise her on his own.

Birthday: Spring 17

Sign: Gemini

Family: May (granddaughter), Joanna (daughter)

Friend Recipe: Ice Cream

## Loves:

Miso Soup, Noodles, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes

## Likes:

Adamantite, Animal Fodder, Bamboo, Buckwheat Flour, Chirashi Sushi, Cucumbers, Eggplant, Eggs (S), Gold Ore, Grilled Fish, Honey, Hot Milk, Milk (S), Moon Stones, Mushrooms, Mystrile Ore, Omelets, Relaxation Tea, Sand Roses, Sashimi, Sushi, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Truffles, Wool (M), Yarn (S)

## Neutral:

Agate, Amethysts, Apples, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Blue Magic Flowers, Bodigizer, Bread, Copper Ore, Corn, Emeralds, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, Fluorite, Orange Grass, Grapes, Green Grass, Green Peppers, HMSGB Apples, Indigo Grass, Message Bottle, Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix, Oil, Peridot, Pink Cat Flowers, Pudding, Purple Grass, Red Magic Flowers, Rubies, Salad, Sandwiches, Silver Ore, Spring Suns, Stew, SUGDW Apples, Summer Suns, Topaz, Toy Flowers, Turbojolt, White Grass

#### Dislikes:

Apple Pie, Branches, Cake, Cheese (S), Cheese Cake, Chicken Feed, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Curry Rice, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Ice Cream, Junk Ore, Mayonnaise (S), Old Boots, Orichalc, Pineapples, Pizza, Stones, Weeds, Wine

#### Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Curry Powder, Golden Lumber, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Red Grass, Yellow Grass

#### Schedule:

Days: Sunday Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 08:00am = Outside of Yodel Farm 08:00am - 10:00am = Locked in Yodel Farm

10:00am - 07:00pm = Yodel Farm

07:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in Yodel Farm

#### Events.

Barley's Horse, Call To Joanna 1, Call To Joanna 2, Customers For Kai

## Festivals:

Spring Horse Races, Chicken Festival, Cow Festival, Autumn Horse Races, Sheep Festival

-----

VI.03. Basil

Description: One of the leading botanical authorities in the world, Basil moved his family to Mineral Town to study the flora there. Most of the books in the Library were authored by him. He is very diligent and passionate about his work, much to the chagrin of his wife, and is always working on his research.

Birthday: Summer 11

Sign: Virgo

Family: Anna (wife), Mary (daughter)

Friend Recipe: Fruit Latte

## Loves:

Black Grass, Grapes, Green Grass, Mushrooms, Poisonous Mushrooms, Red Grass, Tea Leaves, Truffles, White Grass

## Likes:

Apples, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Blue Grass, Blue Magic Flowers, Bread, Cake, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Corn, HMSGB Apples, Honey, Ice Cream, Indigo Grass, Moon Drop Flowers, Orange Grass, Pineapples, Pink Cat Flowers, Purple Grass, Red Magic Flowers, Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Salad, Sandwiches, Sweet Potatoes, SUGDW Apples, Toy Flowers, Wine, Yellow Grass

## Neutral:

Apple Pie, Bamboo, Bodigizer, Branches, Buckwheat Flour, Cheese (S), Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Cookies, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Eggplant, Eggs (S), Flour, Green Peppers, Hot Milk, Mayonnaise (S), Milk (S), Miso Soup, Muffin Mix, Noodles, Oil, Omelets, Pizza, Pudding, Rice Cakes, Spring Suns, Stew, Stones, Summer Suns, Tomatoes, Turbojolt, Weeds

## Dislikes:

Chirashi Sushi, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Grilled Fish, Sashimi, Sushi, Wool (M), Yarn (S)

## Hates

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder,

Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Emeralds, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Golden Lumber, Junk Ore, Message Bottle, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Old Boots, Orichalc, Peridot, Pirate Treasure, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Topaz

## Schedule:

Days: Sunday Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 10:00am = Locked in his House (Upstairs)

10:00am - 01:00pm = His House (Downstairs)
01:00pm - 05:10pm = Locked in his House
05:10pm - 07:00pm = His House (Downstairs)

07:00pm - 07:40pm = Walking to the Inn 07:40pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn 10:00pm - 10:40pm = Walking to his House

10:40pm - 06:00am = Locked in his House

#### Events:

Anna's Cooking School, Basil's Mistake, Customers For Kai, Ellen's White Flower

#### Festivals:

Cow Festival, Year End Sunrise

VI.04. Carter

\_\_\_\_\_

Description: Pastor of Mineral Town's Church, Father Carter is known for his kind smile, benevolence, and unusual sermons. He is very dedicated to the town and his faith, and so, though he gets no

salary, keeps the Church open and available everyday.

Birthday: Autumn 20 Sign: Sagittarius

Family: None In Mineral Town
Friend Recipe: Strawberry Milk

## Loves:

Baked Corn, Buckwheat Flour, Cheese (S), Curry Powder, Eggs (S), Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, Mayonnaise (S), Milk (S), Message Bottle, Oil, Stew, Rice Cakes, Wine

## Likes:

Apples, Cake, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Corn, Cucumbers, Eggplant, Green Peppers, HMSGB Apples, Honey, Hot Milk, Miso Soup, Pineapples, Pizza, Rice Balls, SUGDW Apples, Sweet Potatoes, Tomatoes

## Neutral:

Apple Pie, Bamboo, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Blue Magic Flowers, Branches, Bread, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Curry Rice, Grapes, Grilled Fish, Ice Cream, Moon Drop Flowers, Mushrooms, Noodles, Omelets, Pink Cat Flowers, Pudding, Red Magic Flowers, Relaxation Tea, Salad, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Spring Suns, Summer Suns, Sushi, Tea Leaves, Toy Flowers, Truffles, Yarn (S)

## Dislikes:

Black Grass, Blue Grass, Bodigizer, Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Muffin Mix, Orange Grass, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Turbojolt, White Grass, Yellow Grass

## Hates:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Emeralds, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Golden Lumber, Junk Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Old Boots, Orichalc, Peridot, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Stones, Topaz, Weeds, Wool (M)

#### Schedule:

Days: Everyday (except Monday, Wednesday)

Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 09:00am = Graveyard of the Church

09:00am - 01:00pm = The Church

01:00pm - 04:00pm = Outside of the Church

04:00pm - 10:00pm = The Church

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Church

Days: Everyday

Weather: Rainy, Snowing

06:00am - 09:00am = Graveyard of the Church

09:00am - 01:00pm = The Church

01:00pm - 04:00pm = Church Confessional

04:00pm - 10:00pm = The Church

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Church

Days: Mondays, Wednesdays

Weather: All

06:00am - 09:00am = Graveyard of the Church

09:00am - 01:00pm = The Church

01:00pm - 04:00pm = Church Confessional

04:00pm - 10:00pm = The Church

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Church

#### Events:

Carter's Delivery, Carter's Secret, Customers For Kai

## Festivals:

New Year's Festival, Cooking Festival, Cow Festival, Music Festival, Harvest Festival, Autumn Horse Races, Year End Noodles

-----

VI.05. Doug

-----

Description: Red-haired Doug is the owner of the local Inn & Bar. A very friendly man, he is a fantastic chef and loves to meet new people (especially paying customers). Despite wanting very much to marry her off, he and his daughter Ann are quite close.

Birthday: Winter 11 Sign: Capricorn

Family: Ann (daughter)

Friend Recipe: Cheese Fondue

## Loves:

Bamboo, Black Grass, Buckwheat Flour, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate Cake, Corn, Grilled Fish, Ice Cream, Mushrooms, Noodles, Pizza, Pudding, Purple Grass, Relaxation Tea, Rice Cakes, Sashimi, Sushi, Tea Leaves, Truffles

## Likes:

Apples, Bread, Bodigizer, Cheese (S), Chocolate, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Eggs (S), Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, Grapes, Green Grass, HMSGB Apples, Honey, Indigo Grass, Mayonnaise (S), Milk (S), Muffin Mix, Oil, Pineapples, Rice Balls, SUGDW Apples, Tomatoes, Turbojolt, White Grass, Wine

#### Neutral:

Apple Pie, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Blue Grass, Cake,
Cheese Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Curry Rice, Eggplant,
Green Peppers, Hot Milk, Message Bottle, Miso Soup, Omelets, Orange Grass,
Salad, Sandwiches, Spring Suns, Stew, Summer Suns, Sweet Potatoes
Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Animal Fodder, Blue Magic Flowers, Branches, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Emeralds, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Junk Ore, Moon Drop Flowers, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Orichalc, Peridot, Pink Cat Flowers, Red Grass, Red Magic Flowers, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Topaz, Toy Flowers, Wool (M), Yarn (S), Yellow Grass Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Stones, Weeds

## Schedule:

Days: Everyday
Weather: All

06:00am - 08:00am = Backroom of the Inn (Bedroom)

08:00am - 01:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn

01:00pm - 03:00pm = Backroom of the Inn (Kitchen)

03:00pm - 07:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn

07:00pm - 09:00pm = Backroom of the Inn (Kitchen)

09:00pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn 10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Inn

#### Events:

Ann's Mother's Memorial 2, Call To Joanna 1, Call To Joanna 2, Cliff Faints, Cliff Leaves Mineral Town, Customers For Kai, Doug's Birthday, Duke Vs. Doug, Karen Vs. Duke

## Festivals:

New Year's Festival, Spring Horse Races, Cooking Festival, Chicken Festival, Harvest Festival, Autumn Horse Races, Year End Sunrise

VI.06. Duke

Doscription: That

Description: That man with the salt 'n' pepper hair is Duke, co-owner of Aja Winery. Very amiable and boisterous, he and Manna argue often because he loves wine and spends a lot of time at the Inn.

Birthday: Winter 15

Sign: Aquarius

Family: Manna (wife), Aja (daughter)

Friend Recipe: None

## Loves:

Bread, Cheese (S), Chirashi Sushi, Cucumbers, Eggplant, Fish (L), Grilled Fish, Miso Soup, Rice Cakes, Sashimi, Sushi, Wine

## Likes:

Apple Pie, Apples, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Eggs (S), Grapes, HMSGB Apples, Ice Cream, Omelets, Pineapples, Pudding, Rice Balls, Sandwiches, SUGDW Apples, Truffles

## Neutral:

Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bamboo, Blue Magic Flowers, Cheese Cake, Corn, Curry Rice, Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, Green Peppers, Honey, Hot Milk, Mayonnaise (S), Message Bottle, Milk (S), Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix, Mushrooms, Noodles, Pink Cat Flowers,

Red Magic Flowers, Salad, Spring Suns, Stew, Summer Suns, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Toy Flowers, Wool (M), Yarn (S)

#### Dislikes:

Black Grass, Blue Grass, Bodigizer, Curry Powder, Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Oil, Orange Grass, Pizza, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Relaxation Tea, Turbojolt, White Grass, Yellow Grass

#### Hates:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Branches, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Emeralds, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Golden Lumber, Junk Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Old Boots, Orichalc, Peridot, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Stones, Topaz, Weeds

#### Schedule:

Days: Tuesday, Sunday

Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in the Winery

07:00am - 01:00pm = The Winery

01:00pm - 03:00pm = Cellar of the Winery03:00pm - 05:00pm = Vineyard of the Winery

05:00pm - 06:50pm = The Winery

06:50pm - 07:20pm = Walking to the Inn 07:20pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn 10:00pm - 10:20pm = Walking to the Winery10:20pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Winery

## Events:

Customers For Kai, Duke Vs. Doug, Helping At The Winery 1, Helping At The Winery 2, Karen Vs. Duke, Manna & Duke's Argument

## Festivals:

New Year's Festival, Spring Horse Races, Chicken Festival, Autumn Horse Races, Year End Noodles

VI.07. Ellen

\_\_\_\_\_

Description: Ellen is a very sweet older woman who has lost the use of her legs due to an illness. Although she spends her days confined to her rocker, she is still cheerful and a very much beloved member of the Mineral Town community. Yes, she is the very same Ellen from the original HM SNES game.

Birthday: Winter 13

Sign: Pisces

Family: Elli (granddaughter), Stu (grandson)

Friend Recipe: Sandwiches

## Loves:

Apples, Cheese (S), Fish (L), Flour, Grapes, HMSGB Apples, Honey, Milk (S), Muffin Mix, Relaxation Tea, Rice Cakes, SUGDW Apples, Tea Leaves, Truffles, Wool (G), Wool (L), Wool (M), Wool (S), Yarn (G), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S)

## Likes:

Amethysts, Apple Pie, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes,
Blue Magic Flowers, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Cheese Cake, Chocolate Cookies,
Cookies, Cucumbers, Eggs (S), Emeralds, Hot Milk, Ice Cream, Miso Soup,
Moon Drop Flowers, Noodles, Omelets, Pink Cat Flowers, Pudding,
Red Magic Flowers, Rubies, Stew, Tomatoes, Topaz, Toy Flowers

Neutral:

Bamboo, Black Grass, Bodigizer, Bread, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Corn, Curry Powder, Eggplant, Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Green Grass, Green Peppers, Grilled Fish, Mayonnaise (S), Message Bottle, Mushrooms, Oil, Peridot, Pineapples, Pizza, Rice Balls, Salad, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Spring Suns, Sushi, Summer Suns, Sweet Potatoes, Turbojolt, White Grass

#### Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Blue Grass, Branches, Copper Ore, Curry Rice, Empty Cans, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Indigo Grass, Junk Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Old Boots, Orange Grass, Orichalc, Purple Grass, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Stones, Yellow Grass

## Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Chicken Feed, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Red Grass, Weeds, Wine

## Schedule:

Days: Everyday
Weather: All

06:00am - 08:00am = Locked in Her House

08:00am - 10:00pm = Her House

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in Her House

#### Events:

Customers For Kai, Ellen's Old Letter, Ellen's Visitor, Ellen's White Flower, Playtime With Stu, Stu Is Sick

#### Festivals:

None

----

VI.08. Gotz

-----

Description: Gotz is the reclusive woodcutter who lives in Mineral Forest.

After the tragic death of his wife and daughter, he took to patrolling Mother's Hill, in the hopes of preventing anyone else from sharing their fate. You can hire him to upgrade the buildings on your farm, but make sure you give him a nice gift everyday, or he may feel unappreciated and quit.

Birthday: Autumn 2

Sign: Scorpio

Family: None In Mineral Town
Friend Recipe: Savory Pancakes

## Loves:

Apples, Cheese (S), Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Eggs (S), Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish Sticks, Flour, HMSGB Apples, Honey, Mayonnaise (S), Oil, SUGDW Apples, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Truffles, Wool (M)

## Likes:

Apple Pie, Bodigizer, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cookies, Hot Milk, Ice Cream, Milk (S), Miso Soup, Omelets, Pudding, Relaxation Tea, Salad, Sandwiches, Sushi, Wine

## Neutral:

Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bamboo, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Blue Magic Flowers, Bread, Cheese Cake, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate Cake, Cookies, Corn, Curry Rice, Eggplant, Fish (S), Grapes, Green Grass, Green Peppers, Grilled Fish, Indigo Grass, Moon Drop Flowers, Mushrooms, Noodles, Orange Grass, Pineapples, Pink Cat Flowers, Purple Grass, Red Magic Flowers, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Sashimi, Spring Suns, Stew, Summer Suns, Tomatoes, Toy Flowers, Turbojolt, White Grass

```
Dislikes:
     Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Animal Fodder, Baked Corn, Chicken Feed,
     Copper Ore, Emeralds, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Junk Ore, Moon Stones,
     Muffin Mix, Mystrile Ore, Orichalc, Peridot, Pizza, Rubies, Sand Roses,
     Silver Ore, Topaz, Yarn (S), Yellow Grass
Hates:
     Ancient Fossils, Branches, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber,
     Message Bottle, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms,
     Red Grass, Stones, Weeds
Schedule:
     Days: Tuesday
     Weather: Sunny
          06:00am - 07:00am = His House
          07:00am - 08:10am = Walking to Mother's Hill
          08:10am - 10:00am = Base of Mother's Hill
          10:00am - 11:10am = Walking to his House
          11:10am - 10:00pm = His House
          10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in his House
     Days: Sunday
     Weather: Sunny
          06:00am - 10:00am = Locked in his House
          10:00am - 12:50pm = His House
          12:50pm - 01:30pm = Walking to Mother's Hill
          01:30pm - 04:00pm = Peak of Mother's Hill
          04:00pm - 10:00pm = His House
          10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in his House
Events:
     Customers For Kai, Gotz's Past, Gotz Quit?!
Festivals:
     New Year's Festival, Cooking Festival, Harvest Festival,
     Autumn Horse Races, Sheep Festival, Year End Noodles
     _____
     VI.09. Harris
     _____
Description: Harris is the merry and sociable constable of Mineral Town.
             is very attentive about his job and patrols Mineral Town everyday
              like clockwork.
Birthday: Summer 4
Sign: Cancer
Family: Thomas (He is Harris's father in every other HM game that they appear
                in. However, it is never actually stated in FoMT/MoFo.)
Friend Recipe: Fried Rice
Loves:
     Apple Pie, Bodigizer, Cake, Chocolate Cake, Fish (S), Relaxation Tea,
     Sandwiches, Turbojolt, Wine
Likes:
     Apples, Baked Corn, Bamboo, Blue Magic Flowers, Cheese (S), Cheese Cake,
     Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Corn, Eggs (S), Green Peppers, HMSGB Apples,
     Honey, Hot Milk, Mayonnaise (S), Miso Soup, Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix,
     Omelets, Pineapples, Pink Cat Flowers, Red Magic Flowers, Rice Balls,
```

Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bread, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate, Cucumbers,

Neutral:

Salad, Stew, SUGDW Apples, Sushi, Sweet Potatoes, Toy Flowers, Wool (M)

Curry Powder, Eggplant, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish Sticks, Flour, Grapes, Grilled Fish, Ice Cream, Milk (S), Mushrooms, Noodles, Oil, Pizza, Pudding, Rice Cakes, Spring Suns, Summer Suns, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Truffles

#### Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Animal Fodder, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Branches, Buckwheat Flour, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Curry Rice, Emeralds, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Junk Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Orange Grass, Orichalc, Peridot, Purple Grass, Rubies, Sand Roses, Sashimi, Silver Ore, Topaz, White Grass, Yarn (S), Yellow Grass

## Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Message Bottle, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Red Grass, Stones, Weeds

## Schedule:

Days: Tuesday, Sunday

Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in his House 07:00am - 08:20am = Walking to Yodel Farm

08:20am - 10:00am = Yodel Farm

10:00am - 11:00pm = Walking to Gotz's House

11:00pm - 01:00pm = Gotz's House

01:00pm - 02:00pm = Walking to the Inn 02:00pm - 04:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn 04:00pm - 04:30pm = Walking to his House04:30pm - 05:00pm = Locked in his House

05:00pm - 07:00pm = His House

07:00pm - 10:00pm = Just Outside his House

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in his House

## Events:

Advice For Harris 1, Advice For Harris 2, Customers For Kai, Gotz's Past

## Festivals:

Spring Horse Races, Autumn Horse Races, Sheep Festival

VI.10. Jeff

Description: Jeff is the sweet, if slightly anxious, co-owner of the Mineral Town Supermarket. He is very good-natured, and so, tends to get taken advantage of when it comes to payment of goods. Jeff is quite artistic, and paints in his spare time.

Birthday: Winter 29

Sign: Pisces

Family: Sasha (wife), Karen (daughter)

Friend Recipe: None

## Loves:

Blue Grass, Bodigizer, Honey, Indigo Grass, Pudding, Relaxation Tea, Turbojolt, White Grass

## Likes:

Apples, Black Grass, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Chocolate, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Grapes, Grilled Fish, HMSGB Apples, Hot Milk, Milk (S), Miso Soup, Noodles, Omelets, Pink Cat Flowers, Purple Grass, Stew, SUGDW Apples, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Truffles

## Neutral:

Adamantite, Apple Pie, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bamboo, Blue Magic Flowers,

Bread, Cheese (S), Cheese Cake, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Corn, Cucumbers, Eggplant, Eggs (S), Flour, Green Grass, Green Peppers, Mayonnaise (S), Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix, Mushrooms, Orange Grass, Pineapples, Pizza, Red Magic Flowers, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Salad, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Spring Suns, Summer Suns, Sushi, Toy Flowers, Wool (M), Yarn (S)

#### Dislikes:

Agate, Amethysts, Baked Corn, Copper Ore, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Emeralds, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Ice Cream, Junk Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Oil, Orichalc, Peridot, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Topaz, Wine, Yellow Grass

## Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Branches, Chicken Feed, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Message Bottle, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Red Grass, Stones, Weeds

## Schedule:

Days: Tuesdays
Weather: Sunny
 06:00am - 10:00am = Locked in the Supermarket
 10:00am - 10:30am = Walking to the Church
 10:30am - 01:00pm = The Church
 01:00pm - 01:20pm = Walking to Mineral Clinic
 01:20pm - 04:00pm = Mineral Clinic
 04:00pm - 04:10pm = Walking to the Supermarket

04:10pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Supermarket

Days: Sunday
Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 01:00pm = Locked in the Supermarket

01:00pm - 01:30pm = Walking to the Inn01:30pm - 04:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn

04:00pm - 04:30pm = Walking to the Supermarket 04:30pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Supermarket

## Events:

Customers For Kai, Doctor's Mistake, Jeff's Backbone, Jeff's Painting, Jeff & Sasha's Past

## Festivals:

Spring Horse Races, Beach Day, Music Festival, Sheep Festival, Year End Noodles

-----VI.11. Lillia

-----

Description: Lillia is the gentle, cotton candy-haired owner of the Poultry Farm. She has a very sickly constitution, and so her health is constantly monitored. Her husband left years ago to find a cure for her, so she cheerfully takes care of the farm and her two kids on her own.

Birthday: Spring 19

Sign: Gemini

Family: Popuri (daughter), Rick (son), Rod (husband)

Friend Recipe: Scrambled Eggs

## Loves:

Blue Grass, Blue Magic Flowers, Bodigizer, Cheese (S), Fish (L), Green Grass, HMSGB Apples, Indigo Grass, Moon Drop Flowers,

Red Magic Flowers, Relaxation Tea, SUGDW Apples, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Truffles, Turbojolt, White Grass

#### Likes:

Amethysts, Apple Pie, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Cookies, Corn, Emerald, Hot Milk, Pink Cat Flowers, Pizza, Pudding, Purple Grass, Rubies, Sweet Potatoes, Topaz, Toy Flowers, Wool (M), Yarn (S)

## Neutral:

Baked Corn, Bread, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Chirashi Sushi,
Chocolate Cookies, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Eggplant,
Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, Green Peppers, Grilled Fish,
Ice Cream, Mayonnaise (S), Miso Soup, Muffin Mix, Mushrooms, Noodles, Oil,
Omelets, Orange Grass, Pineapples, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Salad,
Sandwiches, Sashimi, Spring Suns, Stew, Summer Suns, Sushi

## Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Animal Fodder, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Junk Ore, Message Bottle, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Orichalc, Peridot, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Yellow Grass

#### Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Branches, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Red Grass, Stones, Weeds

#### Schedule:

Days: Tuesday Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 11:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm
11:00am - 07:00pm = 1st Floor of the Poultry Farm
07:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm

Days: Sundays
Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 11:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm
11:00am - 01:00pm = 1st Floor of the Poultry Farm
01:00pm - 02:20pm = Walking to Mineral Clinic

02:20pm - 04:00pm = Mineral Clinic

04:00pm - 05:20pm = Walking to the Poultry Farm 05:20pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Poultry Farm

## Events:

Advice For Manna, Customers For Kai, Medicine For Lillia, Letter From Rod, Zack's Concern

## Festivals:

Cooking Festival, Autumn Horse Races

-----

VI.12. Manna

Description: Manna, with her dark hair cut into a short bob, is the co-owner of Aja Winery. A very social and loquacious lady, she is also very kind and loves to offer advice. Although she and Duke love each other very much, their relationship has been a little strained since Aja left town.

Birthday: Autumn 11

Sign: Libra

Family: Duke (husband), Aja (daughter) Friend Recipe: Boiled Spinach (Greens)

Loves:

Bamboo, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Honey, Pineapples, Pink Cat Flowers, Mayonnaise (S), Milk (S), Muffin Mix, Relaxation Tea, Sushi, Tea Leaves, Truffles

#### Likes:

Amethysts, Apples, Bodigizer, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Cheese (S), Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Cucumbers, Eggplant, Eggs (S), Emeralds, Grapes, Green Peppers, HMSGB Apples, Ice Cream, Moon Drop Flowers, Oil, Pudding, Rice Cakes, Rubies, SUGDW Apples, Sweet Potatoes, Tomatoes, Topaz, Toy Flowers, Yarn (S)

#### Neutral:

Apple Pie, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Blue Magic Flowers, Bread, Cheese Cake, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate, Corn, Curry Powder, Flour, Grilled Fish, Hot Milk, Message Bottle, Miso Soup, Noodles, Omelets, Peridot, Pizza, Red Magic Flowers, Rice Balls, Salad, Sandwiches, Sashimi, Spring Suns, Stew, Summer Suns, Turbojolt, Wine, Wool (M)

## Dislikes:

Black Grass, Blue Grass, Curry Rice, Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Mushrooms, Orange Grass, Poisonous Mushrooms, Purple Grass, Red Grass, White Grass, Yellow Grass

#### Hates:

Adamantite, Agate, Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Branches, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Golden Lumber, Junk Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Old Boots, Orichalc, Pirate Treasure, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Stones, Weeds

#### Schedule:

Days: Tuesday, Sunday

Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in the Winery

07:00am - 01:00pm = The Winery

01:00pm - 01:50pm = Walking to Rose Square

01:50pm - 04:00pm = Rose Square

04:00pm - 04:50pm = Walking to the Winery

04:50pm - 10:00pm = The Winery

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Winery

## Events:

Advice For Manna, Anna's Cooking School, Customers For Kai, Helping At The Winery 2, Manna & Duke's Argument

## Festivals:

New Year's Festival, Spring Horse Races, Cooking Festival, Harvest Festival, Year End Noodles

\_\_\_\_\_ VI.13. May

Description: May is the cute little resident of Yodel Farm. Barley's granddaughter, she has a sweet and gentle temperament, and loves to play. She hopes for her mother to come back home soon so that they can be a family.

Birthday: Winter 26

Sign: Aquarius

Family: Barley (grandfather), Joanna (mother)

Friend Recipe: None

## Loves:

Animal Fodder, Apples, Blue Magic Flowers, Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Fish (L), HMSGB Apples, Honey, Ice Cream, Pineapples, Pink Cat Flowers, Red Magic Flowers, Stew, SUGDW Apples, Toy Flowers, Wool (M), Yarn (S)

#### Likes:

Adamantite, Amethysts, Apple Pie, Cheese (S), Cheese Cake, Curry Rice, Eggs (S), Emeralds, Empty Cans, Grapes, Hot Milk, Mayonnaise (S), Message Bottle, Milk (S), Moon Drop Flowers, Old Boots, Relaxation Tea, Rubies, Sandwiches, Topaz, Tomatoes

#### Neutral:

Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Black Grass, Bread, Chirashi Sushi, Corn, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Eggplant, Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Miso Soup, Muffin Mix, Noodles, Oil, Omelets, Pizza, Pudding, Rice Balls, Salad, Spring Suns, Summer Suns, Sushi, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, White Grass

## Dislikes:

Bamboo, Blue Grass, Bodigizer, Buckwheat Flour, Green Peppers, Grilled Fish, Mushrooms, Orange Grass, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Rice Cakes, Sashimi, Truffles, Turbojolt, Wine, Yellow Grass

#### Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Agate, Branches, Chicken Feed, Copper Ore, Gold Ore, Golden Lumber, Junk Ore, Fish Scales, Fluorite, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Orichalc, Peridot, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Stones, Weeds

## Schedule:

Days: Sunday
Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in Yodel Farm

07:00am - 10:00am = Locked in Yodel Farm (Backyard)

10:00am - 11:00am = Backyard of Yodel Farm

11:00am - 01:00pm = Yodel Farm (Inside)

01:00pm - 01:50pm = Walking to the Church

01:50pm - 04:00pm = Outside of the Church

04:00pm - 04:50pm = Walking to Yodel Farm

04:50pm - 07:00pm = Yodel Farm (Inside)

07:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in Yodel Farm

## Events:

Call To Joanna 2, Customers For Kai, Welcome Back Kai

## Festivals:

Spring Horse Races, Cow Festival, Music Festival, Sheep Festival, Pumpkin Festival

-----

## VI.14. Saibara

\_\_\_\_\_

Description: Gruff Saibara is Mineral Town's blacksmith. He is a very old-fashioned and strict older man, which brings a little tension to his relationship with his grandson. However, for those who look past his tough exterior, he is actually a very kind and admirable gentleman.

Birthday: Spring 11

Sign: Taurus

Family: Gray (grandson)

Friend Recipe: Pickled Turnips

## Loves:

Adamantite, Bamboo, Buckwheat Flour, Fish (L), Miso Soup, Mystrile Ore, Orichalc, Rice Cakes, Truffles

#### Likes:

Agate, Amethysts, Apples, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Branches, Cheese (S), Copper Ore, Cucumbers, Eggplant, Emeralds, Fluorite, Grilled Fish, Gold Ore, HMSGB Apples, Milk (S), Moon Stones, Mushrooms, Peridot, Rice Balls, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, SUGDW Apples, Sweet Potatoes, Topaz, Wine

#### Neutral:

Blue Magic Flowers, Chirashi Sushi, Corn, Eggs (S), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Grapes, Green Peppers, Honey, Hot Milk, Mayonnaise (S), Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix, Noodles, Pink Cat Flowers, Red Magic Flowers, Relaxation Tea, Salad, Sashimi, Spring Suns, Summer Suns, Sushi, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Toy Flowers

#### Dislikes:

Apple Pie, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Bodigizer, Bread, Cake, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Flour, Green Grass, Ice Cream, Indigo Grass, Junk Ore, Oil, Omelets, Orange Grass, Pineapples, Pizza, Pudding, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Sandwiches, Stew, Turbojolt, White Grass, Wool (M), Yarn (S), Yellow Grass

#### Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Chicken Feed, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Message Bottle, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Stones, Weeds

#### Schedule:

Days: Sunday
Weather: Sunny
 06:00am - 10:00am = Locked in his House
 10:00am - 07:00pm = His House
 07:00pm - 07:50pm = Walking to the Inn

07:00pm - 07:50pm = Walking to the Inn 07:50pm - 10:00pm = 1st Floor of the Inn 10:00pm - 10:40pm = Walking to his House10:40pm - 06:00am = Locked in his House

## Events:

Customers For Kai, Ellen's Visitor

## Festivals:

New Year's Festival, Spring Horse Races, Chicken Festival, Autumn Horse Races, Year End Sunrise

VI.15. Sasha

Description: Feisty and spirited Sasha is co-owner of the Mineral Town
Supermarket. A very attractive and community-oriented lady,
she keeps her blond hair pulled up into a bun. Sasha is very
nice and makes it a point to visit everyone in the town,
especially those who cannot go out much.

Birthday: Spring 30

Sign: Aries

Family: Jeff (husband), Karen (daughter)

Friend Recipe: Chocolate Cookies

## Loves:

Blue Magic Flowers, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Moon Drop Flowers, Pink Cat Flowers, Pudding, Red Magic Flowers, Toy Flowers

Likes:

Baked Corn, Buckwheat Flour, Corn, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Eggplant, Eggs (S), Emeralds, Flour, Green Peppers, Honey, Mayonnaise (S), Milk (S), Muffin Mix, Oil, Pineapples, Rubies, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Topaz, Truffles, Wine, Wool (M), Yarn (S)

#### Neutral:

Apple Pie, Apples, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Bamboo, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Bodigizer, Bread, Cake, Curry Rice, Grapes, Green Grass, HMSGB Apples, Hot Milk, Ice Cream, Indigo Grass, Miso Soup, Mushrooms, Noodles, Omelets, Orange Grass, Peridot, Pizza, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Salad, Sandwiches, Spring Suns, Stew, SUGDW Apples, Summer Suns, Turbojolt, White Grass, Yellow Grass

Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Cheese (S), Cheese Cake, Chirashi Sushi, Copper Ore, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Fluorite, Gold Ore, Grilled Fish, Junk Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Orichalc, Sand Roses, Sashimi, Silver Ore, Sushi

## Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Branches, Chicken Feed, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Message Bottle, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Stones, Weeds

#### Schedule:

Days: Tuesdays
Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 07:00am = Locked in the Supermarket

07:00am - 08:10am = Walking to Yodel Farm

08:10am - 10:00am = Yodel Farm

10:00am - 10:40am = Walking to the Poultry Farm

10:40am - 01:00pm = The Poultry Farm

01:00pm - 02:00pm = Walking to Ellen's House

02:00pm - 04:00pm = Ellen's House

04:00pm - 04:10pm = Walking to the Supermarket

04:10pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Supermarket

Days: Sunday
Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 01:00pm = Locked in the Supermarket

01:00pm - 01:40pm = Walking to Rose Square

01:40pm - 04:00pm = Rose Square

04:00pm - 04:50pm = Walking to the Supermarket 04:50pm - 06:00am = Locked in the Supermarket

## Events:

Advice For Manna, Customers For Kai, Jeff's Backbone, Jeff's Painting, Jeff & Sasha's Past, Letter From Rod

## Festivals:

Spring Horse Races, Cooking Festival, Beach Day, Music Festival, Harvest Festival, Year End Noodles

VI.16. Stu

-----

Description: Stu is an energetic little boy who lives with his grandmother. He loves to play tricks on his sister Elli, and run about in general. He and May are very close in age, and so, play together often.

Birthday: Autumn 5

Sign: Libra

Family: Ellen (grandmother), Elli (sister)

Friend Recipe: None

#### Loves:

Apple Pie, Cake, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Grapes, Honey, Hot Milk, Ice Cream, Pizza, Sandwiches, Yarn (G), Yarn (L), Yarn (M), Yarn (S)

#### Likes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Cheese (S), Copper Ore, Curry Rice, Emeralds, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish Sticks, Fluorite, Gold Ore, HMSGB Apples, Mayonnaise (S), Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Omelets, Orichalc, Peridot, Pineapples, Rice Cakes, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Stew, SUGDW Apples, Topaz, Wool (G), Wool (L), Wool (S)

#### Neutral:

Apples, Bamboo, Branches, Bread, Corn, Curry Powder, Eggs (S), Flour, Milk (S), Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix, Noodles, Oil, Pink Cat Flowers, Pudding, Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Salad, Spring Suns, Summer Suns, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Toy Flowers, Wool (M)

#### Dislikes:

Blue Magic Flowers, Bodigizer, Buckwheat Flour, Chirashi Sushi, Cucumbers, Eggplant, Fish (S), Green Peppers, Grilled Fish, Junk Ore, Miso Soup, Mushrooms, Red Grass, Red Magic Flowers, Sashimi, Sushi, Sweet Potatoes, Turbojolt

#### Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Chicken Feed, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Green Grass, Indigo Grass, Message Bottle, Old Boots, Orange Grass, Pirate Treasure, Poisonous Mushrooms, Purple Grass, Stones, Truffles, Weeds, White Grass, Wine, Yellow Grass

## Schedule:

Days: Sunday
Weather: Sunny
 06:00am - 01:00pm = His House
 01:00pm - 01:30pm = Walking to the Church
 01:30pm - 04:00pm = Outside of the Church
 04:00pm - 04:30pm = Walking to his House
 04:30pm - 10:00pm = His House

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in his House

## Events:

Customers For Kai, Ellen's Old Letter, Ellen's Visitor, Playtime With Stu, Stu Is Sick

## Festivals:

New Year's Festival, Cow Festival, Music Festival, Pumpkin Festival

VI.17. Thomas

Description: Thomas is the jovial mayor of Mineral Town. He is very involved with the Town and works hard to make sure that everyone is happy. Thomas will be the first to greet you when you initially take

Birthday: Summer 25

Sign: Virgo

Family: Harris (He is Thomas's son in every other HM game that they appear in.

However, it is never actually stated in FoMT/MoFo.)

Friend Recipe: None

#### Loves:

Apple Pie, Chocolate Cake, Buckwheat Flour, Pizza, Relaxation Tea, Wine Likes:

Bamboo, Cake, Cheese (S), Eggs (S), Honey, Hot Milk, Milk (S), Miso Soup, Pineapples, Rice Cakes, Sweet Potatoes, Truffles

#### Neutral:

Apples, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Blue Magic Flowers, Bodigizer, Bread, Cheese Cake, Chocolate, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Corn, Cucumbers, Curry Powder, Curry Rice, Eggplant, Fish (L), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Flour, Grapes, Green Peppers, Grilled Fish, HMSGB Apples, Ice Cream, Mayonnaise (S), Moon Drop Flowers, Muffin Mix, Mushrooms, Noodles, Oil, Omelets, Pink Cat Flowers, Poisonous Mushrooms, Pudding, Red Magic Flowers, Rice Balls, Salad, Sandwiches, Spring Suns, Stew, SUGDW Apples, Summer Suns, Tea Leaves, Tomatoes, Toy Flowers, Turbojolt, Wool (M), Yarn (S)

## Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Chirashi Sushi, Copper Ore, Emeralds, Fluorite, Green Grass, Gold Ore, Indigo Grass, Junk Ore, Message Bottle, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Orange Grass, Orichalc, Peridot, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Rubies, Sand Roses, Sashimi, Silver Ore, Sushi, Topaz, White Grass, Yellow Grass

#### Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Branches, Chicken Feed, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Stones, Weeds

#### Schedule:

Days: Sunday Weather: Sunny

06:00am - 10:00am = Locked in his House

10:00am - 01:00pm = Ellen's House

01:00pm - 02:00pm = Walking to Rose Square

02:00pm - 04:00pm = Rose Square

04:00pm - 05:00pm = Walking to his House

05:00pm - 10:00pm = His House

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in his House

## Events:

Customers For Kai, Thomas's Request, Welcome To Mineral Town

## Festivals:

New Year's Festival, Spring Horse Races, Cooking Festival, Beach Day, Chicken Festival, Cow Festival, Harvest Festival, Autumn Horse Races, Sheep Festival, Year End Noodles

-----

VI.18. Zack

Description: Zack is a very sweet-natured, muscular man. Responsible for all the delivery and shipping in Mineral Town, he is quite the busy man and can't afford to waste time. He has a crush on one particular lady, but due to circumstances, is determined to keep it a secret.

Birthday: Summer 29

Sign: Cancer

Family: None In Mineral Town Friend Recipe: Fried Noodles

Loves:

Apples, Bodigizer, Cheese (S), Cucumbers, Curry Rice, Fish (L), HMSGB Apples, Noodles, Orichalc, Pineapples, Pink Cat Flowers, Pizza, SUGDW Apples, Sushi, Tomatoes, Turbojolt, Wine

## Likes:

Bamboo, Chocolate, Eggs (S), Fish (M), Fish (S), Fish Sticks, Grapes, Grilled Fish, Mayonnaise (S), Relaxation Tea, Rice Balls, Rice Cakes, Sandwiches, Truffles

#### Neutral:

Apple Pie, Baked Corn, Baked Sweet Potatoes, Blue Magic Flowers, Bread, Buckwheat Flour, Cake, Cheese Cake, Chirashi Sushi, Chocolate Cake, Chocolate Cookies, Cookies, Corn, Curry Powder, Eggplant, Flour, Green Peppers, Honey, Hot Milk, Ice Cream, Milk (S), Miso Soup, Moon Drop Flowers, Mushrooms, Muffin Mix, Oil, Omelets, Pudding, Red Magic Flowers, Salad, Sashimi, Spring Suns, Stew, Summer Suns, Sweet Potatoes, Tea Leaves, Toy Flowers

#### Dislikes:

Adamantite, Agate, Amethysts, Black Grass, Blue Grass, Copper Ore, Emeralds, Fluorite, Green Grass, Gold Ore, Indigo Grass, Junk Ore, Moon Stones, Mystrile Ore, Orange Grass, Peridot, Poisonous Mushrooms, Purple Grass, Red Grass, Rubies, Sand Roses, Silver Ore, Topaz, White Grass, Wool (M), Yarn (S), Yellow Grass

#### Hates:

Ancient Fossils, Animal Fodder, Branches, Chicken Feed, Empty Cans, Fish Scales, Golden Lumber, Message Bottle, Old Boots, Pirate Treasure, Stones, Weeds

## Schedule:

Days: Everyday
Weather: All
 06:00am - 07:00am = His Place

07:00am - 08:00am = Walking to the Supermarket

08:00am - 10:00am = The Supermarket

10:00am - 11:00am = Walking to his Place

11:00am - 04:30pm = His Place

04:30pm - 04:50pm = Walking to Your Farm

04:50pm - 06:00pm = Your Farm

06:00pm - 06:10pm = Walking to the Blacksmith's

06:10pm - 07:00pm = The Blacksmith's

07:00pm - 08:10pm = Walking to his Place

08:10pm - 10:00pm = His Place

10:00pm - 06:00am = Locked in his Place

## Events:

Carter's Delivery, Customers For Kai, Free Fishing Rod, Gift For Lillia, Golden Service Time, Mixed-Up Apples, Welcome To Mineral Town, Zack's Concern

## Festivals:

New Year's Festival, Spring Horse Races, Cooking Festival, Beach Day, Autumn Horse Races

\_\_\_\_\_

VII. "DON'T TOUCH THAT DIAL"

(AND NOW, A WORD FROM OUR SPONSOR...)

It's been a long time since you've been to Mineral Town to socialize. Maybe you're just too busy. Maybe you're just a loner. Maybe you're just

scared. Don't be! "Mineral Town Friends" is just the show you need to get you up to speed with all the happenings of the Mineral Town residents! What does Saibara really like? Who is Sasha married to? When's your spouse's birthday? Every week we answer these hard questions and more. Soon, you'll be able to schmooze around town with confidence. Mineral Town Friends! We've missed you! Saturdays on TV Channel LEFT (button on the Directional Pad).

\*NOTE: We regret to inform our viewers that this program is currently only available in Town Houses (like the one you buy from Gotz).

And now, back to the guide... ^ ^

\_\_\_\_\_

VIII. "DO YOU BELIEVE IN MAGIC?" (THE HARVEST SPRITES)

\_\_\_\_\_

Coming Eventually!

\_\_\_\_\_

IX. "MY FUNNY FRIEND & ME"

(ANIMAL CARE)

\_\_\_\_\_

Coming Sooner Than Sect. VIII!

\_\_\_\_\_

X. "CELEBRATION"
(EVENTS & FESTIVALS LIST)

\_\_\_\_\_

X.01. Events

-----

Event 17: Customers For Kai

Where: Entering Kai's Restaurant

When: Any day / Sunny / Summer Only / 5pm - 7pm

Kai is sad because he can't seem to get many customers at all. Suddenly Popuri shows up announcing that she's brought guests with her. A bunch of the townspeople show up and Kai is happy, but then more and more \*and more\* people start arriving. Overwhelmed, he asks you to help him and you automatically agree. You and Popuri spend the rest of the evening helping him in the restaurant, and once he closes for the night, you leave and automatically wake up the next morning.

Advice For Harris 1, Advice For Harris 2, Advice For Manna,
Ann & Cliff's Argument, Ann's Mother's Memorial 1,
Ann's Mother's Memorial 2, Anna's Cooking School, Barley's Horse,
Basil's Mistake, Carter's Delivery, Call To Joanna 1, Call To Joanna 2,
Carter's Secret, Cliff Faints, Cliff Leaves Mineral Town,

Cooking For The Girls, Doctor's Mistake, Doctor's Parents, Doug's Birthday, Duke Vs. Doug, Ellen's Old Letter, Ellen's Visitor, Ellen's White Flower, Elli Studies Medicine, Free Fishing Rod, Gift For Lillia, Golden Service Time, Gotz's Past, Gotz Quit?!, A Gourmet Dinner, Gray Visits Kai's Shop, Harvest Sprites' Tea Party, Helping At The Winery 1, Helping At The Winery 2, Helping Out Basil, Jeff's Backbone, Jeff's Painting, Jeff & Sasha's Past, Karen Vs. Duke, Letter From Rod, A Lonely Husband, Manna & Duke's Argument, Medicine For Lillia, Mixed-Up Apples, No Room At The Clinic, Playtime With Stu, Popuri's Necklace, Rick Vs. Kai, Rick's Worries, Sick Puppy, Slumber Party, Stu Is Sick, Thomas's Request, Welcome Back Kai, Welcome To Mineral Town, Zack's Concern

-----

X.02. Festivals

\_\_\_\_\_

Festival 15: Starry Night Festival

Winter 23 - Winter 24

The Starry Night festival is slightly different depending on which version of the game you're playing.

FoMT: On Winter 23, talk to a girl that has a Green Heart or higher for you. She will invite you to spend the holiday with her at her home. If you accept her invitation, then after 6pm the next evening (Winter 24), you should meet her at her home to trigger the cut scene. When the event fully ends, you will wake up at your own home the next morning. If you are already married, instead of having dinner with your wife's family, the two of you will have dinner at home. Just enter your home between noon and 6pm on Winter 24.

MoFo: On Winter 23, Mayor Thomas should be at your door in the morning with invitations from all the bachelors that have a Green Heart or higher for you. You should only accept one, and then after 6pm the next evening (Winter 24), you should meet the accepted bachelor at his home to trigger the event. After that, the two of you will travel back to your house for dinner, and if it's your first time participating in the Starry Night Festival, he'll give you a ring. After that he leaves and you wake up the next morning. If you are already married, instead of having dinner with your husband's family, the two of you will have dinner at home. Just enter your home between noon and 6pm on Winter 24.

\*Note! If you are unmarried and want to participate in this event, make sure that you save your game the evening of Winter 21. Go to sleep and the next morning, check the weather report for Winter 23. If a blizzard is scheduled, do NOT save the game. Reload and repeat until the forecast is sunny or snowy. Blizzards trap you inside your house for the entire day, which means that you won't be able to go outside and talk to any of the girls or Mayor Thomas and accept your invitation. That means you can't trigger the event on Winter 24 and you'll have to wait until next year to try to see the event.

Autumn Horse Races, Beach Day, Chicken Festival, Cooking Festival, Cow Festival, Fireworks Festival, Full Moon Festival, Harvest Festival, Music Festival, New Year's Festival, Pumpkin Festival, Sheep Festival, Spring Horse Races, Spring Thanksgiving Festival, Stocking Festival, Winter Thanksgiving Festival, Year End Noodles, Year End Sunrise

X.03. Game Extras

\_\_\_\_\_\_

Coming Eventually!

\_\_\_\_\_

XI. "THE LITTLE THINGS"

(FINAL INFO THAT'S NOT INTERESTING...)

\_\_\_\_\_

-----

XI.01. Email Policy

-----

Harvest Moon-related mail only, please. E-mails with no subjects WILL be deleted. Use this subject: HM Ultimate Guide. Also, please don't e-mail me before using the spell-checker. It's very painful. :-(

Please feel free to view my fan art and fanfiction located on my homepage. However, please use my e-mail to send me messages and questions related to this guide. I haven't been able to play as often, so updates are very slow-going, but I'll answer any emailed questions to the best of my abilities. ^ ^

-----

XI.02. Special Thanks To...

ALLIE C. for bringing FoMT home and spreading the addiction around.

- EVERYONE else out there for being just as obsessed as I am with this game, and most especially for reading my guide(s). Thank you also for writing in with corrections and additions! It is so very much appreciated.  $^{^{^{\prime}}}$
- FANFICTION.NET for renewing my interest in the game each time I start to get bored with it.
- FREYASHAWK --http://harvestmoonforever.blogspot.com/-- for giving me permission to use her original 'Legend of the Blue Feather' story. How I wish it was canon! Everyone should check out her numerous wonderful walkthroughs and her HM blog!
- GAMEFAQS.COM for being what it is and having what it has. You can't describe it better than that.
- GOOGLE for helping me find a lot of the information I was missing and confirming my theories.
- JAIME H. for the use of his laptop with which I finished the first version of this guide! Yeeaaahhh!!!
- JONATHAN G. for starting the chain reaction of the Harvest Moon obsession. LIZ S. for helping me with confirming and missing information (especially the stuff regarding Rick).
- MARVELOUS, NATSUME, NINTENDO, and VICTOR INTERACTIVE for all of Harvest Moon!
- SAMURAI GOROH and THE KING OF THIS GAME for granting me permission to use their points system information and correcting the friendship points info. More details on this can be found in their full, excellent FAQ:
  --http://www.gamefaqs.com/portable/gbadvance/file/589702/28030--
- SARAH P. for helping me with confirming, proofreading, missing/conflicting information, as well as the astrological info.
- USHI NO TANE --http://www.foqu.com/hm/-- for explaining certain events

\_\_\_\_\_

## XI.03. Version History

\_\_\_\_\_

Version 1.0

Posted on 03/29/08. Satisfied with walkthrough enough to submit it online.

Version 2.0

Posted on 12/02/09. Fixed some small stuff here and there. Added info on accessing the Town Map. Corrected Doctor's birthday. Removed 'confessing and not being forgiven' as a friendship decreaser. Added friendship point info for the townspeople. Added info on giving multiple gifts per day and rival heart levels after marriage. Added a placeholder for Section III.06. Adjusted Gray's schedule. Added locations for the Harvest Goddess and Kappa. Added info for the 'Customers For Kai' event and the 'Starry Night Festival'.

-----

## XI.04. Copyright Info & Disclaimer

This Document is Copyright 2008-2009, Ashanti Freeman. Harvest Moon: Friends Of Mineral Town is Copyright 2003 Victor Interactive Software Inc. & Natsume Inc., and licensed by Nintendo of America. Harvest Moon: More Friends Of Mineral Town is Copyright 2005 Marvelous Interactive Inc. & Natsume Inc., and licensed by Nintendo of America.

And just in case I forgot something, all trademarks and copyrights contained in this document are owned by their respective trademark and copyright holders. This includes the song titles used as labels for each of the main sections.

This guide may not be reproduced under any circumstances except for personal, private use. It may not be placed on any web site or otherwise distributed publicly without advance written permission. Use of this guide on any other web site or as a part of any public display is strictly prohibited, and a violation of copyright. If you really like it that much, please just link back to one of the sites below. Thanks! ^ ^

http://www.gamefaqs.com
https://www.neoseeker.com

I am not affiliated with Marvelous, Natsume, Nintendo, Victor Interactive, or anyone else you can think of. This guide was brought to you by the letter  $^{1}A^{1}$ .

============

# XII. "I GOT STUNG" (STINGER)

\_\_\_\_\_

"Anyway, thanks very much! Do you always give presents to the townspeople, like if you're going to give them to some, you have to give to everybody, now! Not just the pretty girls, you hear?! Ha ha... Anyway, thanks again!"

-- Manna, after being given a Pink Cat Flower (FoMT)

This document is copyright Arashinonatsu and hosted by VGM with permission.